
1

CITY OF BARABOO COMMON AMENDED*
COUNCIL AGENDA

Council Chambers, 101 South Blvd., Baraboo, Wisconsin
Tuesday, September 27, 2022, 7:00 P.M.

Regular meeting of the City of Baraboo Common Council, Mayor Nelson presiding.
Notices Sent To Council Members: Wedekind, Kolb, Hazard, Kent, Petty, Ellington, Sloan, Kierzek, and Thurow
Notices Sent To City Staff, Media And Other Interested Parties: City Administrator Bradley, CDA Dir. Cannon, Clerk
Zeman, DPW Dir/Engineer Pinion, Finance Dir. Ostrander, Fire Chief Stieve, EMS Chief Johnson, Library Dir.
Bergin, Parks & Rec. Dir. Hardy, Interim Police Chief Sinden, Street Super. Gilman, Utility Super. Peterson, Treasurer
Laux, Baraboo News Republic, WBDL, 99.7FM, Bonnie Meeker

1. CALL TO ORDER

2. ROLL CALL AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

3. APPROVAL OF PREVIOUS MINUTES (Voice Vote): September 13, 2022

4. APPROVAL OF AGENDA (Voice Vote)

5. COMPLIANCE WITH OPEN MEETING LAW NOTED

6. PRESENTATIONS

 Michael Compton will present an update about the UW-Platteville Baraboo Sauk County campus.

7. PUBLIC HEARINGS

8. PUBLIC INVITED TO SPEAK (Any citizen has the right to speak on any item of business that is on the agenda for Council
action if recognized by the presiding officer.)

9. MAYOR'S BUSINESS –

 The draft Baraboo Area Joint Fire and Emergency Medical Services District Intergovernmental
Agreement & Bylaws is attached to the agenda as correspondence. Any questions, comments, and/or
concerns should be directed to City Administrator Bradley no later than October 11th.

 Congratulations to Parks, Recreation, and Forestry Director Mike Hardy for his recognition by Powered
Up Baraboo. The “Golden LED Lightbulb Award for Leadership in Sustainability” will be presented
Friday, September 30 at 6:00 p.m. at Maxwell-Potter Conservancy.

 The Mayor would like to congratulate Bonnie Meeker, Finance Assistant-Accountant on her retirement
from the Finance Department. Congratulations Bonnie!

10. CONSENT AGENDA (Roll Call)
CA-1…Approve the accounts payable to be paid in the amount of $_________________.

CA-2…Approve Trick-or-Treat hours for Monday, October 31, 2022 between 4pm and 7pm in the City of
Baraboo.

CA-3…Approve exemption from County Library tax for 2022.

CA-4…Approve the appointment of Seth Meise to Baraboo Economic Development Commission to serve the
remaining term of Dave Johnson.

1 of 85



2

CA-5…*Approve the Temporary Alcohol License application (aka Picnic License) for Shakespeare on the Edge,
Inc., A Gathering of Rogues & Ruffians-A Renaissance Faire, October 8, 2022 and October 9, 2022.

11. ORDINANCES ON 2ND READING
SRO-1… Consider amending §13.25 pertaining to Reserve Capacity Assessments and §13.35 pertaining to
Residential Equivalency Charges. (Pinion)

12. NEW BUSINESS –RESOLUTIONS
NBR-1…Consider adopting 2023 Parks, Recreation, and Forestry Department Fees and Charges. (Hardy)

NBR-2…Consider request to subsidize 2023 Boys & Girls Club of Baraboo-Sauk County lease of the Civic
Center by 65%. (Hardy)

NBR-3…Consider request to subsidize 2023 Baraboo Area Senior Citizens Organization lease of the Civic
Center by 65%. (Hardy)

NBR-4…Consider request to subsidize Stage III theater for Youth lease of the Civic Center by 50%. (Hardy)

NBR-5…Consider approving lease of the Pierce Park Pavilion to the Baraboo Thunderbird Youth Hockey
Association for October 15, 2022-April 15, 2023. (Hardy)

13. NEW BUSINESS ORDINANCES
None.

14. COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE
Moved by ____________________, seconded by _________________, to enter Committee of the Whole to
discuss the following:

 Update of Preliminary 2023 Budget & Review

 Legal Counsel Options

Moved by ____________________, seconded by _________________, to rise and report from Committee of
the Whole and return to regular session. (Roll Call)

15. ADMINISTRATOR AND COUNCIL COMMENTS (Comments are limited to recognition of City residents and
employees, memorials, and non-political community events; discussion of matters related to government business is prohibited.)

16. REPORTS, PETITIONS, and CORRESPONDENCE - The City acknowledges receipt and distribution of
the following:

 Reports: August, 2022 - Treasurer

 Minutes from the Following Meetings:

Copies of these meeting minutes are included in your packet:
Finance……………..8-23-2022 BID…………7-13-2022, 8-10-2022, 8-17-2022
UW Campus………..8-18-2022 Public Safety…7-25-2022
Plan………………...7-19-2022, 8-16-2022 Review Board….6-21-2022, 8-9-2022

Copies of these meeting minutes are on file in the Clerk's office:
Public Arts…………8-25-2022 Library………..8-16-2022
EMS/Fire…………..8-22-2022
Petitions and Correspondence Being Referred: Draft of the Baraboo Area Joint Fire and Emergency
Medical Services District Intergovernmental Agreement.

2 of 85



3

17. ADJOURNMENT (Voice Vote)
Brenda Zeman, City Clerk

For more information about the City of Baraboo, visit our website at www.cityofbaraboo.com

September 2022

Sunday Monday Tuesday Wednesday Thursday Friday Saturday
25 26 27 28 29 30 1

Public Safety Finance

Council

October 2022
Sunday Monday Tuesday Wednesday Thursday Friday Saturday

25 26 27 28 29 30 1

2 3 4 5 6 7 8
Administrative CDA BEDC

9 10 11 12 13 14 15
Park & Rec Finance

Council

16 17 18 19 20 21 22
PFC Plan

Library

BID

Ambulance

UW Campus

23 24 25 26 27 28 29
Finance

Council

Public Arts

EM Mgmt.

30 31 1 2 3 4 5
Public Safety

PLEASE TAKE NOTICE - Any person who has a qualifying disability as defined by the Americans with Disabilities
Act who requires the meeting or materials at the meeting to be in an accessible location or format should contact the
City Clerk at 101 South Blvd., Baraboo WI or phone (608) 355-2700 during regular business hours at least 48 hours
before the meeting so reasonable arrangements can be made to accommodate each request.

Agenda jointly prepared by D. Griggel and B. Zeman AMENDED Agenda posted on 09/22/2022

3 of 85



City of Baraboo Council Minutes September 13, 2022 Volume 44 Page #83

Council Chambers, Municipal Building, Baraboo, Wisconsin
Tuesday, September 13, 2022 – 7:00 p.m.

Mayor Nelson called the regular meeting of Council to order.
Roll call was taken.
Council Members Present: Wedekind, Kolb, Hazard, Kent, Petty, Ellington, Sloan, Kierzek, Thurow
Council Members Absent:
Others Present: Interim Chief Sinden, Clerk Zeman, Adm. Bradley, J. Ostrander, T. Pinion, members of
the press and others.

The Pledge of Allegiance was given.

Moved by Kolb, seconded by Ellington and carried to approve the minutes of August 23, 2022.

Moved by Petty, seconded by Ellington and carried to approve the amended agenda removing the
Temporary Liquor License request for Baraboo Acts Coalition and the Closed Session regarding Room
Tax.

Compliance with the Open Meeting Law was noted.

PRESENTATIONS –None Scheduled.

PUBLIC HEARINGS –None Scheduled.

PUBLIC INVITED TO SPEAK

Kory Hartman, 201 8th Ave, spoke on behalf of Baraboo Broadcasting noting that they have telecasted
Council meetings for over 25 years. This started because cable companies had to have franchise
agreement with the City to be allowed to even serve the residents and to use City rights. As part of the
franchise agreement, Charter is required to provide the City with a number of public educational
government channels. The government channel, currently channel 92, was the one chosen to broadcast
Council meetings. Baraboo Broadcasting currently has an agreement with the City to broadcast the
Council meetings, run the equipment, plus all of the regulatory red tape. Over the last couple of years
they have added cable channel 10 and free over-the-air antenna 43.1 plus a facebook streaming. This
assures the people have easy and free access to the business of the City. He asks that Council asks some
tough technical questions regarding the quality of video, the current equipment, and make sure it
reaches the demographic group that interacts with City government. Also, how taking funds away from
a local broadcaster might impact their ability to operate and cover the city in the future.

MAYOR’S BUSINESS
 The Baraboo Acts Coalition presents a day of cultural workshops during “Celebrate Sauk” on

Saturday, September 24th from 11 a.m. to 5 p.m. at Las Milpas restaurant on 8th Avenue.

 The City’s Fall/Winter Newsletter will be available this week online at cityofbaraboo.com. Paper
copies will also be available at City Hall, Library, and Civic Center.

CONSENT AGENDA
Resolution No. 22-83

THAT the Accounts Payable, in the amount of $2,542,026.11 as recommended for payment by the
Finance/Personnel Committee, be allowed and ordered paid.

Resolution No. 22-84
THAT the City Clerk be authorized to issue the following Picnic Licenses:

 Downtown Baraboo, Inc, 2022 Brew Ha Ha, 9-23-2022

 Baraboo Young Professionals, Baraboo Night Market, 9-16-2022

4 of 85



City of Baraboo Council Minutes September 13, 2022 Volume 44 Page #84

Moved by Ellington, seconded by Wedekind and carried that the Consent Agenda be approved-
9 ayes.

ORDINANCES ON 2ND READING
None.

NEW BUSINESS - RESOLUTIONS
Resolution No. 22-85

Resolved, by the Common Council of the City of Baraboo, Sauk County, Wisconsin:

THAT the City Clerk be authorized to issue the following Liquor License:

 Reserve “Class B” Combination License, The Relish Tray Bistro, LLC, 106 4th Ave.

Moved by Kolb, seconded by Kent and carried that Resolution No. 22-85 be approved-9 ayes.

Resolution No. 22-86
Resolved by the Common Council of the City of Baraboo, Sauk County, Wisconsin:

WHEREAS, the Common Council has reviewed the reports and recommendations of Interim
Police Chief Sinden and the City’s Administrative Committee regarding the August 3, 2022, Tavern
Operator License application filed with the City by Ginger Stromberg, and

WHEREAS, the City Clerk has attempted to notify Ginger Stromberg of the option to
appear at the September 13, 2022, Council meeting as an opportunity to speak to the Council on her
behalf regarding the appeal request.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Common Council deny Ginger
Stromberg’s Tavern Operator License

Moved by Wedekind, seconded by Hazard and carried that Resolution No. 22-86 be approved-
9 ayes.

Resolution No. 22-87
Resolved, by the Common Council of the City of Baraboo, Sauk County, Wisconsin:

WHEREAS the City has received bids for the demolition and disposal of the existing buildings
at 106 Walnut Street and 103/105 Walnut Street; and

WHEREAS the City does not currently own the property at 106 Walnut Street.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Administrator is authorized to accept
the donation, to the City, of the property located at 106 Walnut Street for the purpose of demolition and
disposal. Upon execution of a development agreement, the property at 106 Walnut Street is to be
returned.

BE IT FUTHER RESOLVED, that the Proposal for Building Demolition & Disposal at 106
and 103/105 Walnut Street from Beaver Services, Inc. in the amount of $68,400 is hereby accepted and
all other bids are rejected.

Moved by Wedekind, seconded by Ellington and carried that Resolution No. 22-87 be
approved-9 ayes.

Resolution No. 22-88

5 of 85



City of Baraboo Council Minutes September 13, 2022 Volume 44 Page #85

Resolved, by the Common Council of the City of Baraboo, Sauk County, Wisconsin:

That the Encroachment Report for the STH 33 Reconstruction project prepared by Oneida
Engineering Solutions and the recommendations included therein for the following properties are
hereby approved and that the City Engineer is authorized to issue the respective Revocable
Encroachment Agreements.

Encroach No. Owner: Address: Tax Parcel No
1 City of Baraboo 101 South Blvd 206-0190-00000

(Ochsner Park) (903 Park Street)
2 Jamison P Vaughn 617 8th Avenue 206-2705-00000
4 Bean Counter Investments 201 8th Avenue 206-1187-00000
5 Emmett McCarthy 220 8th Street 206-1155-00000
7 Eastside Centre LLC 1212 8th Street 206-0675-00000

Moved by Ellington, seconded by Sloan and carried that Resolution No. 22-88 be approved-9
ayes.

Resolution No. 22-89
Resolved, by the Common Council of the City of Baraboo, Sauk County, Wisconsin:

THAT the City Clerk is authorized to execute the attached three-year agreement with eScribe for
their “Webcasting Plus” bundle for the price of $17,870 (Year 1), $14,725 (Year 2), and $15,167 (Year
3).

Moved by Petty, seconded by Hazard and carried that Resolution No. 22-89 be approved-9
ayes.

NEW BUSINESS – ORDINANCES
Motion by Wedekind, seconded by Thurow and carried unanimously to approve the 1st reading of
Ordinance No. 2600 amending §13.25 pertaining to Reserve Capacity Assessments and §13.35
pertaining to Residential Equivalency Charges.

THE COMMON COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF BARABOO, WISCONSIN, DO ORDAIN
AS FOLLOWS:

1. Section 13.25, Reserve Capacity Assessments of the Baraboo Municipal Code is hereby amended
as follows:

13.25 RESERVE CAPACITY ASSESSMENTS. (1589 03/12/91)
(1) For all sanitary sewer additions made after July l, 1986, there is hereby levied and

assessed upon each lot or parcel of land currently within the City which does not have
an existing connection to the waste water facilities and upon lands subsequently
attached to the City by annexation or for the purpose of using the waste water facilities
a reserve capacity assessment (RCA). Such RCA charge shall be payable to the City as
herein provided and shall be made on the basis of one RCA charge for each residential
equivalent connection (REC) to the waste water facilities. Said charge shall be as set
forth in the City’s Official Fee Schedule per each REC and shall be credited to the
sewer debt fund.

(2) Any person connecting to a sanitary sewer constructed by the City shall pay a
minimum connection fee as set forth in the City’s Official Fee Schedule for each
connection unless special assessments in a greater amount been levied upon the parcel,

6 of 85



City of Baraboo Council Minutes September 13, 2022 Volume 44 Page #86

in which case the larger amount shall be paid. This connection shall be in addition to
the assessment under sub. (1). The connection fee shall be paid to the City Treasurer
before any lot or parcel of land, or part thereof, is connected to the sanitary sewer. Said
payment shall be credited to the sewer general fund.

(3) For the purpose of this subchapter, sewer connections in the City shall be classified
as existing connections or future connections. Existing connections shall include those
in existence and connections for which a sewer connection permit has been issued and
construction started as of July 1, 1982. Future connections shall be those not in
existence as of July 1, 1982.

(4) The RCA for a single-family residence shall be set by the Council in a separate
action. The City Engineer shall determine the residential equivalency units for all other
categories of buildings, pursuant to Section 13.35 Residential Equivalency Charge
Chart. Special charges may be determined by the Council for large commercial or
industrial users.

(5) There shall be no RCA charge for existing connections. Payments of the RCA
charge for future connections shall be paid in full upon the issuance of a building
permit.

2. Section 13.35 Residential Equivalency Charges Chart of the Baraboo Municipal Code is hereby
amended as follows

13.35 RESIDENTIAL EQUIVALENCY CHARGE CHART. The following list is the assigned
Residential Equivalent Connection to be used when and where required.
(1) Single-family dwelling One REC
(2) Duplex Two REC
(3) Condo, townhouse One REC
(4) Apartment, mobile home 0.67 REC for each unit
(5) Hotel or motel 0.50 REC for each unit
(6) Church One REC
(7) Funeral home Two REC
(8) Greenhouse One REC
(9) Garage/filling station One REC
(10) Car wash, automatic 6 REC
(11) Car wash, self-serve One REC for each stall
(12) Beauty parlor, barber shop One REC for each 3 stations
(13) Bowling alleys 0.33 REC for each lane
(14) Restaurants/Tavern 0.034 REC per seat (2240 10/24/2006)
(15) Doctors and dentists One REC for each 2 doctors
(16) Offices/Industries One REC for each 20 employees
(17) Halls One REC for each 20 capacity
(18) Nursing homes 0.33 REC for each unit
(19) Laundromats One REC for each washing machine
(20) Schools, without shower One REC for each 75 students
(21) Schools, with shower One REC for each 50 students

Additional for food preparation One REC for each 250 meals
(22) Travel trailer dumping station Two REC for each station
(23) Campsite 0.6 for each site (1590 3-12-91)

Any category of users not listed shall be assigned a REC by the City after a recommendation by the
City Engineer. This list may be revised and updated from time to time.

7 of 85



City of Baraboo Council Minutes September 13, 2022 Volume 44 Page #87

3. This Ordinance shall take effect upon passage and publication as provided by law.

COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE
Moved by Ellington, seconded by Sloan, to enter Committee of the Whole to discuss the future use
and disposition of current Fire/EMS Station property and the 2023 Budget.

Future Use and Disposition of current Fire/EMS Station Property

Adm. Bradley explained that there are different options for the existing Fire/EMS facility. We
currently are in the process of working with developers to potentially refurbish this site. There are
developers that are interested in possibly doing this. The theme we have had with developers that
we partner with long term is we focus on developers that have financial workflow to complete
projects but also ones that have a proven track record of not only owning, but also managing long
term any projects that they take part of. With this being a downtown project, one of the concerns is
getting it right the first time. Development agreements require transfer of ownership by the City to
be approved. There was the suggestion that we potentially look at an RFP and soliciting proposals;
this is not a process Adm. Bradley is comfortable with just because of the sensitivity of the location
of this property. He doesn’t feel we want to entrust this to just anyone. He would prefer we
continue working with developers and their projects as proposed to Council.

Mayor Nelson did some research regarding Request for Proposals (RFP’s) is something that would
be viable. He did receive several responses from municipalities requesting RFP’s for downtown
projects. While it was a small sample size, most of them felt it was an opportunity for the City to
put some boundaries on what we are looking for; we can, in a request for proposals, annunciate
some of the things we would like to see to steer a developer towards something we are going to find
favorable. It would also give us an opportunity to take it a step further and engage in public
comment as to what they would like to see. This is the alternate vision on how we proceed.

Ald. Kolb noted that he has received several calls from residents regarding this city property we are
turning over to a developer and why we are not putting out RFP’s. Even with an RFP we could still
control what type of developer we have. Mayor Nelson confirms that Council would have ultimate
authority on which development project they want to endorse, and there would be nothing
prohibiting any developers that have already expressed an interest in submitting a proposal. It’s not
a situation where we would need to take low bid; we could filter out developers that don’t have the
experience we are looking for.

Ald. Kent questioned Adm. Bradley’s trepidation with going with RFP’s. Adm. Bradley suggests
that we cannot accurately go through an RFP process and do a financial analysis because they are
not going to turn over their financials when it’s a proposal situation. With the current process, it’s
part of negotiations and this information is turned over to the attorneys for review.

Ald. Kent noted that the way we have been doing it, from his perspective, seems like there is a
developer that is interested in a piece of land that has not been developed or is underdeveloped, the
city may or may not own, and that’s the path we seem to go. Council may not have knowledge of
the developers turned down, but all of a sudden it goes real fast. With the current process he feels
it’s already a done deal by the time it gets to Council and has to happen “right now”. He feels it
would be beneficial to understand what our other options are; however, he also understands the
opportunity costs as well.

Ald. Wedekind feels we should move with what we have. Ald. Kolb noted that he is looking for a

8 of 85



City of Baraboo Council Minutes September 13, 2022 Volume 44 Page #88

little more transparency and the ability for the public to comment on the ideas they come up with.

Mayor Nelson noted that by the time the project comes to Council, it’s basically a “yes or no”
answer. This would allow Council to review multiple projects and vote.

Ald. Sloan noted that if you send out RFP’s for a hotel, that is what you are going to get; there is no
creativity for other options. He also feels we’ve had very good results with past developers.

Ald. Thurow feels that with an RFP you are extending the project way out.

Ald. Kent questioned how long the process was for Pelton before the Jackson property was brought
to Council. Adm. Bradley noted that they started talking to them in February and the development
agreement was approximately October.

Ald. Kent notes that if we had competing developers, there is opportunity costs and what is the
difference between them? Adm. Bradley noted that each developer is going to be slightly different
based on the needs of the City.

Ald. Petty questions the likelihood of developers coming to Baraboo if we start setting restrictions
on what we want. Adm. Bradley’s bigger concern is that we don’t want this to be a mistake; and that
could mean going with a developer that’s done these types of development with a successful track
record.

It was also noted the uncertainty with today’s economy.

Ald. Sloan noted that at any point the City is able to say “no”. If there is a proposal that Council
does not like, they have the option to say no.

Ald. Hazard noted that in the past, the Jackson property may have sat vacant because we didn’t have
the housing shortage we currently have. We need to show our citizens that we are not married to
one developer.

Adm. Bradley explained that we’ve had developers walk away when we tell them transfer of
ownership is a requirement. It will be in every contract and is non-negotiable. If we are going to
give tax incentives to the projects that Council ultimately should be able to vet who the new owner
may be.

Mayor Nelson asked Council members to participate in an informal straw vote giving direction to
staff on how to move forward with proposals for redeveloping the fire station property. This
resulted in a vote of 7 votes to work with developer that has already expressed interest and 2 votes
to prepare a request for proposal and distributing them.

Ald. Hazard stated that the public can still contact them with any concerns; this is not cast in stone.

2023 Budget

Finance Director J. Ostrander gave an update on the 2023 budget. For salaries, wages, and benefits,
it does include a 4% COLA for employees. The departments were allowed to offer their budget
cuts for 2023, some to include the permanent removal of currently unfilled staff positions.

She also provided the Council with a snapshot of our current debt.

9 of 85



City of Baraboo Council Minutes September 13, 2022 Volume 44 Page #89

Discussion on the levy and capital planning will take place at the September 27th Council meeting.

Moved by Kolb, seconded by Kent, to rise and report from Committee of the Whole and return to
regular session. (Roll Call)

ADMINISTRATOR AND COUNCIL COMMENTS
 Ald. Kolb thanked Kory and his team for providing communication services for the last 25

years.
 Ald. Wedekind noted they will be taking down the flags at the cemetery on Saturday morning.

REPORTS, PETITIONS, AND CORRESPONDENCE
The City officially acknowledges receipt and distribution of the following:

 Reports: August, 2022 –Building Inspection, Fire Dept.

 Minutes from the Following Meetings:

Finance/Personnel Committee–Dennis Thurow Committee Room, #205 August 9, 2022
Members Present: Sloan, Kent, Petty
Absent:
Others Present: Mayor Nelson, Adm. Bradley, Treasurer Laux, J. Ostrander, P. Cannon

Call to Order –Ald. Sloan called the meeting to order at 6:00p.m. noting compliance with the Open Meeting Law.
Moved by Kent, seconded by Sloan to approve the minutes of July 26, 2022. Motion carried unanimously. Moved by
Petty, seconded by Kent to approve the agenda. Motion carried unanimously.

Action Items
a) Accounts Payable – Moved by Petty, seconded by Kent to recommend to Council approval of the accounts

payable for $1,579,732.96. Motion carried unanimously.

b) UW-Baraboo Campus Budget –J. Ostrander explained that the UW-Baraboo Campus has requested from
Sauk County $110,000 for their 2023 budget. For the City, this means a contribution of $110,000 which is
double the $55,000 from 2022. Over the course of the next few years, the Campus is estimating about
$550,000 of expenses, not counting the theatre project. This cost would be split 50/50 between the City and
Sauk County. Adm. Bradley noted that the City is responsible for 50% of the infrastructure costs. Repairs and
updates to the Fine Arts Building, the theatre project, is estimated at $800,000. J. Ostrander noted that the
Campus does have money available in their fund balance; a cushion should emergency repairs be needed. The
Committee questioned whether we can afford this increase and the general consensus is no. It is requested that
the Campus provide a presentation to the City Council. No action taken.

c) General Obligation Bonds –J. Ostrander noted that this has to do with closing TID #6 and paying off the debt
in TID #8. The 2012A Bond $75,000 is to pay off TID #6 and $390,000 is for TID #8. The 2013A is all TID
#8, $585,000. The 2014A is $200,000 for TID #6 and $250,000 for TID #8. Basically TID #6 is going to close
next year, we are going to get the debt paid off now and roll excess funds over for payment of TID #8 debt.
Motion by Petty, seconded by Kent to recommend to Council to approve Resolution Authorizing the Partial
Redemption of Certain Outstanding General Obligation Bonds. Motion carried unanimously.

Discussion Items:
The Committee continued to review the proposed changes to the Purchasing Policy. This will be brought back to the next
Finance/Personnel Committee meeting to continue the review.

Adjournment –Moved by Petty, seconded by Kent and carried to adjourn.

Administrative Committee August 3, 2022
Present: Alderpersons Kathleen Thurow, Heather Kierzek, Bryant Hazard
Absent: None.

10 of 85



City of Baraboo Council Minutes September 13, 2022 Volume 44 Page #90

Also Present: City Clerk Brenda Zeman, Interim Police Chief Rob Sinden
Citizen Present: None

The meeting was called to order by Chairman Kathleen Thurow at 8:00am, with roll call and noting compliance
with the Open Meetings Law.

Motion by Hazard second by Kierzek to approve the July 5, 2022, minutes.

Motion by Hazard seconded by Kierzek to approve the agenda. Motion carried unanimously

Action Items:

a) Review and recommendation to the Common Council for a Class “B” Fermented Malt Beverage and

a ”Class C” Wine License for TB’s Broadway Diner, LLC, 304 Broadway St. .

Interim Police Chief Rob Sinden noted there are no issues with this license, the background check

has been completed, and recommends approval. City Clerk Zeman noted that the Broadway

Diner currently holds a license; this application is due to the sale of the business. Motion by

Hazard, seconded by Kierzek to recommend to the Common Council the approval of the Class “B”

Fermented Malt Beverage and the “Class C” Wine License for TB’s Broadway Diner, LLC. Motion

carried unanimously

b) Review and recommendation to the Common Council for the Liquor License Change of Agent for

Kwik trip #855 to Cody Sayles

A background check has been completed on Cody Sayles; no issues were found. Motion by Hazard,

seconded by Kierzek to recommend to the Common Council the approval of the Liquor License Change

of Agent for Kwik Trip #855 to Cody Sayles. Motion carried unanimously.

c) Review and recommendation to the Common Council for the Liquor License Change of Agent for

Kwik trip #657 to Riley Kay Roberts

A background check has also been completed on Riley Kay Roberts; no issues were found. Motion by

Hazard, seconded by Kierzek to recommend to the Common Council the approval of the Liquor License

Change of Agent for Kwik Trip #657 to Riley Kay Roberts. Motion carried unanimously.

d) Review and recommendation to the Common Council on approving the Temporary Liquor License

(aka Picnic License) for the Baraboo Area Chamber of Commerce Oktoberfest, 9-24-2022

Interim Police Chief Sinden noted that the police department will be working very closely with the

Chamber to ensure they comply with the liquor license; there are no issues with this application. Motion

by Hazard, seconded by Kierzek to recommend to the Common Council the approval of the Temporary

Liquor License for the Baraboo Area Chamber of Commerce Oktoberfest on 9-24-2022. Motion carried

unanimously.

Informational Items

a) Date and time for next meeting: Tuesday, September 6, 2022, at 8:00AM

Motion to adjourn by Hazard, seconded by Kierzek at 8:04AM and unanimously carried.

 Copies of these meeting minutes are on file in the Clerk’s office:
Public Arts…………………………..7-28-2022 Park & Recreation…………..8-8-2022
Ambulance………………5-27-2022, 8-24-2022 BDAS/BFD Consolidation..7-11-2022
Library…………………...7-19-2022, 7-26-2022 Airport…………………….5-12-2022
CDA…………………….7-29-2022, 8-2-2022, 8-25-2022

11 of 85



City of Baraboo Council Minutes September 13, 2022 Volume 44 Page #91

 Petitions & Correspondence Being Referred: Correspondence regarding ATV Route in City
of Baraboo.

CLOSED SESSION
Moved by Petty, seconded by Kent, to go into Closed Session. The Mayor announced that the Council
will go into Closed Session pursuant to §19.85(1)(g), Wis. Stat., to confer with legal counsel for the
governmental body who is rendering oral or written advise concerning strategy to be adopted by the
body with respect to litigation in which it is or is likely to become involved. (Claim filed against City)

Council Members Present: Wedekind, Kolb, Hazard, Kent, Petty, Ellington, Sloan, Kierzek, Thurow
Council Members Absent:
Others Present: Mayor Nelson, Clerk Zeman, Adm. Bradley, J. Ostrander, T. Pinion

OPEN SESSION
Moved by Thurow, seconded by Ellington, to return to Open Session. The Mayor announced that the
Council will return to Open Session as per §19.85(2), Wis. Stats., to address any business that may be the
result of discussions conducted in Closed Session.

Resolution No. 22-90
Resolved, by the Common Council of the City of Baraboo, Sauk County, Wisconsin:

THAT the claim filed by Barbara Lewis be denied and authorize Attorney Eric Hagen to notify
Ms. Lewis of the denial.

Moved by Thurow, seconded by Ellington and carried that Resolution No. 22-90 be approved-
9 ayes.

ADJOURNMENT
Moved by Ellington, seconded by Sloan, and carried on voice vote, that the meeting adjourn at 9:07pm.

Brenda Zeman, City Clerk

12 of 85



S:\Council\Resolutions\2022 Resolutions\9-27-22 CA-1 Claims.docx

CA –1

RESOLUTION NO. 2022 - Dated: September 27, 2022

The City of Baraboo, Wisconsin

Background:

Fiscal Note: (Check one) [ ] Not Required [ ] Budgeted Expenditure [ ] Not
Budgeted
Comments

Resolved, by the Common Council of the City of Baraboo, Sauk County,
Wisconsin:

THAT the Accounts Payable, in the amount of $ as recommended for payment by the
Finance/Personnel Committee, be allowed and ordered paid.

Offered By: Consent Approved by Mayor:
Motion:
Second: Certified by City Clerk:

13 of 85



S:\Council\Resolutions\2022 Resolutions\9-27-2022 Trick or Treat Reso.docx

CA - 2

RESOLUTION NO. 2022 - Dated: September 27, 2022

The City of Baraboo, Wisconsin

Background: The Baraboo Police Department is recommending that Halloween Trick-or-Treat
be celebrated on Monday, October 31, 2022 between the hours of 4:00 PM to 7:00 PM.

Fiscal Note: (Check one) [ x ] Not Required [ ] Budgeted Expenditure [ ] Not Budgeted
Comments:

Resolved, by the Common Council of the City of Baraboo, Sauk County,
Wisconsin:

That, Trick-or-Treat hours be set on Monday, October 31, 2022 between the hours of
4:00 PM to 7:00 PM.

Offered By: Consent Approved:
Motion:
Second: Certified:

14 of 85



CA - 3

RESOLUTION NO. 2022 - Dated: September 27, 2022
The City of Baraboo, Wisconsin

Background: The Council must take action annually declaring City taxpayers exempt from paying
county library tax to avoid double taxation of city and county taxes supporting similar services.

Fiscal Note: (check one) [ x ] Not Required [ ] Budgeted Expenditure [ ] Not Budgeted
Comments:

WHEREAS, the Sauk County Board levies a county library tax.

WHEREAS, Section 43.64(2)(b) of the Wisconsin Statutes provides that such units of government
which levy a tax for public library service and appropriate and expend for a library fund as defined by
s.43.52(1) during the year for which the county tax levy is made a sum at least equal to the county tax rate
in the prior year multiplied by the equalized valuation of property in the City for the current year, may
apply for exemption from this tax; and

WHEREAS, the City of Baraboo does levy a library tax in excess of the amount calculated in
accordance with 43.64(2)(b).

Now Therefore be it Resolved, THAT the City of Baraboo be exempted from the payment of any
county library tax as provided in Section 43.64(2)(b) inasmuch as it will expend for its own library fund for
2023 an amount in excess of that calculated in accordance with 43.64(2)(b). Exemption from the payment
of said county library tax shall not preclude the City of Baraboo’s participation in county library service in
all other respects; and

Be it further Resolved THAT confirmed copies of the Resolution be forwarded by the City Clerk
to the Reedsburg Public Library and to the Sauk County Clerk no later than September 30, 2022.

Offered by: Finance Approved:
Motion:
Second: Attest:

15 of 85



S:\Council\Resolutions\2022 Resolutions\9-27-2022 BEDC Appt.docx

CA - 4

RESOLUTION NO. 2022 - Dated: September 27, 2022

The City of Baraboo, Wisconsin

Background:

Fiscal Note: (Check one) [ x ] Not Required [ ] Budgeted Expenditure [ ] Not Budgeted
Comments

Resolved, by the Common Council of the City of Baraboo, confirms the Mayor’s
appointments as follows:

THAT, Seth Meise be appointed to the Baraboo Economic Development Commission
(BEDC) to fill the unexpired term of Dave Johnson until February 28, 2023.

Offered By: Consent Approved by Mayor:
Motion:
Second: Certified by City Clerk:

16 of 85



CA-5
RESOLUTION NO. 2022 - Dated: September 27, 2022

The City of Baraboo, Wisconsin

Background: In order to be in full compliance with State Law, the City amended Chapter
12, Intoxicating Liquor and Fermented Malt Beverages. Because of this change, the
Administrative Committee is now required to review all Liquor License applications and make
a recommendation to Council.

All Liquor Licenses expire annually on June 30th with the exception of the Picnic License. A
Picnic License, also known as a Temporary Beer and/or Wine License, is typically issued for a
one or two day event.

The Picnic License listed below was reviewed by the Police Department and the City Clerk. It
will be reviewed by the Administrative Committee at their September 27th meeting.

Fiscal Note: (check one) [X ] Not Required [ ] Budgeted Expenditure [ ] Not
Budgeted
Comments:

Resolved, by the Common Council of the City of Baraboo, Sauk County,
Wisconsin:

THAT the City Clerk be authorized to issue the following Picnic Licenses:

 Shakespeare on the Edge, Inc., A Gathering of Rogues & Ruffians – A Renaissance
Faire, 10/8/2022 & 10/9/2022

Offered by: Administrative Comm. Approved by Mayor: __________________________________
Motion:

Second: Certified by Clerk:

17 of 85



NBR - 1

RESOLUTION NO. 2022 - Dated: September 27,2022

The City of Baraboo, Wisconsin

Background: This resolution seeks the approval of 2023 Parks, Recreation and Forestry Department Fees
and Charges schedule. The Fees and Charges recommended by the Parks Commission have been used to
develop the 2023 Parks, Recreation and Forestry Department operating budget. The recommended 2023 Fees
and Charges was recommended by unanimous vote of the Parks commission at their August 8, 2022 regular
meeting.
Fiscal Note: [ ] Not Required [ x ] Budgeted Expenditure [ ] Not Budgeted
Comments: Fees and charges recommended were used to develop the 2023 budget.

Resolved, by the Common Council of the City of Baraboo, Sauk County, Wisconsin:

THAT the 2023 Recommended Park, Recreation and Forestry Program Fees be approved for
implementation beginning January 1, 2023.

Offered by: Parks Commission Approved:
Motion:
Second: Attest:

18 of 85



Room 2022 monthly rate 2023 monthly rate Tenant

10 $231.17 $235.80 Wisconsin DNR (contract 2%)

20, 26, 27, 29

& Auditorium

21 & 24 $170.46 $307.27 Senior Center**

31 $451.98 $461.02 Wisconsin DNR Forestry (contract 2%)

32 $0.00 $0.00  

33 $805.00 $829.15 Nature Conservancy (contract 3%)

35 $815.02 $831.32 Wisconsin DPI (contract 2%)

37 & 38 $371.22 $382.36 Stage III Theater***

39 $401.82 $413.87 Lane Property Management

TOTAL $3,979.69 $4,782.06

Room 2022 yearly rate 2023 yearly rate Tenant

10 $2,774.04 $2,829.60 Wisconsin DNR (contract 2%)

20, 26, 27, 29

& Auditorium

21 & 24 $2,045.52 $3,687.24 Senior Center**

31 $5,423.76 $5,532.24 Wisconsin DNR Forestry (contract 2%)

32 $0.00 $0.00  

33 $9,660.00 $9,949.80 Nature Conservancy (contract 3%)

35 $9,780.24 $9,975.84 Wisconsin DPI (contract 2%)

37 & 38 $4,454.64 $4,588.28 Stage III Theater***

39 $4,821.84 $4,966.50 Lane Property Management

TOTAL $47,756.28 $57,384.73

* = City currently subsidizes 80% of Boys and Girls Club rent (recommended 65% = $29,445.45 City allocation)
** = City currently subsidizes 80% of Senior Center rent (recommended 65% = $6,847.74 City allocation)
*** = City currently subsidizes 50% of Stage III Theater rent (recommended continue 50% = $4,588.28 allocation)

$112,000 Budget cut to department allocated by City Council in 2023.  Additional expenses to increase due to   
inflation.   Proposed lease increases provide raising almost $10,000 additional in Civic Center revenues to address
approx. 10% of cuts + inflation to minimize cuts in services. Without recommended lease increases, cuts will need
 to be considered, including building closures and/or utility surcharges to tenants.

Boys and Girls Club currently receives additional space at no additional cost including the 2nd floor kitchen
(shared use with senior center) and the gymnasium (shared use with other organizations).  These spaces are
used heavily by the Club, but not charged by the City and incurs additional costs in staff clean up and utilities.

Senior Center currently receives additional space at no cost including the 2nd floor kitchen (shared use with
boys and girls club).  This space is used infrequently, but available when club not using.

Baraboo Civic Center
2023 Long Term Lease Proposals

Proposed rate is $8.45 per square foot (3% increase)

Total space available for long term teases = 22,296 square feet

$733.02 $1,321.27 Boys & Girls Club*

$8,796.24 $15,855.24 Boys & Girls Club*

19 of 85



Civic Center Facility/Program
 Non-Profit Profit Non-Profit Profit Non-Profit Profit Non-Profit Profit

Small Room Rental (per hour) $12 $17 $15 $20 $15 $20 $15 $20
Large Room Rental (per hour) $17 $22 $20 $25 $20 $25 $20 $25
Gym Rental (per hour) $20 $25 $25 $30 $30 $35 $30 $35
Weekend rate (per hour) *2 hr. min.
Warming Kitchen Rental (per hour) $10 $15 $10 $15 $10 $15 $10 $15

TV/DVD or Projector Rental (per hr) $5 $10 $5 $10 $5 $10 $5 $10
long term lease rates (per sq. ft.)
Preschool Open Gym

Fitness Room - Daily $4 $4 $4 $4 $5 $5 $5 $5
Fitness Room - Monthly $22 $27 $22 $27 $25 $30 $25 $30
Senior Citizen - Monthly (55+) $17 $22 $17 $22 $20 $25 $20 $25
Fitness Room - 6 Month $85 $110 $100 $125 $100 $125 $100 $125
Senior Citizen - 6 Month (55+) $60 $85 $75 $100 $75 $100 $75 $100
City Employee

Park Facility/Program
Res Non-Res Res Non-Res Res Non-Res Res Non-Res

Large Shelter with restrooms $85 $105 $85 $105

Small Shelter with restrooms $55 $75 $75 $95

Shelter w/o restrooms $30 $50 $40 $60

Lower Ochsner Park $40 $60 $50 $70
Pierce Park Pavilion $200 $300 $200 $300 $200 $300
Dog Park - Daily Pass
Dog Park - Annual Pass $20 $30 $20 $30 $25 $35 $25 $35
Community Garden ground plots $25 $30 $25 $35 $25 $35
Community Garden raised beds $20 $25 $20 $30 $25 $35
Bounce House Permit
Additional picnic table rental (each)

Punchcards include 18 sessions (each session = 2 hours)

50% off 50% off 50% off FREE

$3 $3 $3

$40
$225
$3

Small Rentable shelters with restrooms include Pierce, Langer, Steinhorst, Statz, City View, Mary Roundtree Evans,Ochsner 20x40 & Bandstand

Rentable shelters without restrooms include Campbell, Weber, Mary Hoppe Felts, Deppe & Ritzenthaler

$10 + proof of ins.$10 + proof of ins.$10 + proof of ins.

$25

$5

$40

2022 Fees

$5

$15/punchcard or $1/day $15/punchcard or $1/day

2021 Fees2020 Fees

$5

$7.96 $8.04

2023 Proposed Fees

$8.45

$5

City of Baraboo

warming kitchen only available with gym rental

$80

$55

$40

Large Rentable shelters with restrooms include Ochsner Main & Maxwell-Potter

$10 + proof of ins.

add $20 to reg. fee add $20 to reg. fee add $20 to reg. fee add $25 to reg. fee

$8.20

$40

$80

$55

2023 Recommended Park, Recreation & Forestry Program Fees

2023 Proposed Fees

$25/punchcard or $2/day

2022 Fees

$25/punchcard or $2/day

2020 Fees 2021 Fees

20 of 85



Swim Pool Facility/Program
Res Non-Res Res Non-Res Res Non-Res Res Non-Res

Pool Rental (1.5 hour block)

Adult Water Aerobics $30 $40 $30 $40 $30 $40 $35 $45
Aqua Zumba $30 $40 $30 $40 $30 $40 $35 $45
Swim Lessons $35 $45 $35 $45 $40 $50 X X
Daily Swim $5 $5 $5 $5 $5 $5 $5 $5
Individual Season Pass $40 $55 $45 $60 $50 $65 $55 $75
Family Season Pass (6 per address) $105 $130 $105 $130 $110 $135 $115 $145
family members over 6 (same address) $10 $10 $20 $20 $20 $20 $25 $25

Forestry Program
New Street Tree Planting
Replacement Street Tree Planting
Firewood Permit
Tree Maintenance Permit

Zoo Program
Res Non-Res Res Non-Res Res Non-Res Res Non-Res

Behind The Scenes Tour (60 minute) $20/person $30/person

Behind The Scenes Tour (90 minute) $50/person $60/person

Private Keeper Talk (onsite - 45 minute)

Developer Park Impact Fees
Single Family Dwelling (per dwelling)

Multi Family Dwelling (per dwelling)

Fees in lieu of land (per dwelling) $664 $664 $664 $664

2020 Fees 2021 Fees 2022 Fees 2023 Proposed Fees

  

  $50/person

   $100/group
3 person minimum/6 person maximum per tour

open to school groups, non profit groups, nursing homes, etc.

2022 Fees 2023 Proposed Fees
$807 $807 $807 $807
$475 $475 $475 $475

2020 Fees 2021 Fees 2022 Fees 2023 Proposed Fees

No charge No charge
$3.35 per foot of street 

No charge
$3.35 per foot of street 

No charge
$3.35 per foot of street 

3 person minimum/6 person maximum per tour

No charge
$25$25

2020 Fees 2021 Fees

City of Baraboo

2023 Recommended Park, Recreation & Forestry Program Fees

$25
No charge

$25
No chargeNo charge

frontage or actual costs frontage or actual costs frontage or actual costs
Developer Street Tree Fees

$50 $50

$120 $125 $125

2020 Fees 2021 Fees

$75$50

2022 Fees

$150

2023 Proposed Fees

21 of 85



NBR –2

RESOLUTION NO. 2022 - Dated: September 27, 2022

The City of Baraboo, Wisconsin

Background: This resolution seeks the approval of entering into a lease with the Boys and Girls Club of
Baraboo-Sauk County for the rental of space at the Civic Center at the rate of $1,321.27 per month. The lease
rate reflects a 65% rent reduction by the City to assist the Club in offering after school and summer
programming to needy families in the community.
The lease was recommended unanimously by the Parks Commission at their August 8, 2022 regular meeting.
Fiscal Note: [ ] Not Required [ x ] Budgeted Expenditure [ ] Not Budgeted
Comments: The recommended lease rate was used to develop the 2023 budget.

Resolved, by the Common Council of the City of Baraboo, Sauk County, Wisconsin:

THAT the Boys and Girls Club of Baraboo-Sauk County lease for space at the Civic Center in
2023 be approved and that the lease rate be reduced to 35% to allow rent to be paid at $1,321.27 per
month.

Offered by: Parks Commission Approved:
Motion:
Second: Attest:

22 of 85



LEASE AGREEMENT 
 

This Lease Agreement is made this 1st day of January, 2023, between the City of Baraboo, Wisconsin, 
(City), Lessor, and Boys and Girls Club of West-Central Wisconsin-Baraboo/Sauk County (Lessee). 
 

WITNESSETHS: 
 

In consideration of the mutual covenants and pursuant to and subject to the terms and conditions 
hereinafter set forth, Lessor and Lessee agree as follows: 
 

1. Leased Premises.  Lessor does hereby lease to Lessee the portion of the premises located at the 
Baraboo Civic Center, 124 Second Street, Baraboo, Wisconsin, more particularly described as 
follows:  Room 20, 26, 27, 29 & Auditorium 
 

HEREINAFTER REFERRED TO AS THE LEASED PREMISES: 
 

2. Term.  The term of this Lease shall be from January 1, 2023 to December 31, 2023.  Lessor 
agrees that if Lessor does not intend to enter into a new Lease Agreement with Lessee 
commencing on January 1, 2024, for at least an additional six months, Lessor shall give written 
notice to Lessee of such intent on or before December 1, 2023.  If Lessor does not give Lessee 
such notice by December 1, 2023, Lessor agrees that the above Lease shall be automatically 
extended on a month to month basis commencing on January 1, 2024, provided, however, either 
Lessor or Lessee shall have the right during the extended lease period to terminate the Lease by 
giving a 60 day advance written notice of their/its intent to terminate the Lease at the end of the 
60 days.  
 

3. Rent.  Lessor shall provide the lessee use of Room 20, 26, 27, 29 & Auditorium during term of the 
annual lease agreement at a cost of $1,321.27 per month.  
 

4. Purpose.  Lessee shall use the Leased Premises only for the purpose of Boys and Girls Club of 
Baraboo/Sauk County Programming and Management and Lessee agrees that the use of the 
Leased Premises may not be changed without the express written consent of the Lessor, which 
consent shall not be unreasonably withheld. 

 

5. Maintenance and Repairs.  Lessor shall keep the Civic Center Building in good tenantable 
condition. Lessor agrees to provide all major structural repairs and improvements to the Civic 
Center Building, as well as to the electrical, plumbing, heating and ventilating systems.  Any 
repairs necessitated by the acts and omissions of Lessee shall be Lessee's responsibility.  
Lessee shall keep the Leased Premises in a neat, clean and respectable condition and Lessee 
shall make such repairs on the Leased Premises as shall be necessary to keep said premises in 
at least as good a condition as when delivered to it by Lessor.  Unless otherwise agreed in 
writing, Lessee shall, at its own expense, have the right to make such alterations and 
improvements to the Leased Premises as shall be reasonably necessary for Lessee's use of the 
Leased Premises for the operation of the Boys & Girls Club of Baraboo/Sauk County, provided, 
however, that prior to the commencement of any such alteration or improvement, Lessor shall in 
each case have approved in writing such alterations or improvements and the plans and 
specifications therefore.  Lessee shall be responsible for maintaining and keeping the Leased 
Premises in a safe condition for its employees, agents, representatives, invitees and customers.  
Lessee's taking of possession of the Leased Premises shall be conclusive evidence that the 
Leased Premises were in good order and in a safe and satisfactory condition when Lessee took 
possession.  Lessee agrees that no promise of Lessor to alter, remodel, decorate, clean or 
improve the Leased Premises and no representation respecting the condition of the Leased 
Premises has been made by Lessor to Lessee unless the same is set forth in this Agreement.  
Lessee shall be fully responsible for noticing and correcting any unsafe condition on the Leased 
Premises.   

 

6. Utilities.  Lessor, as long as this Lease is in effect, shall furnish at its sole cost and expense all 
heat and utilities for the Leased Premises, except television, internet and telephone.  Lessor 

23 of 85



agrees to furnish heat to the Leased Premises on business days only from 7:00 A.M. to 9:00 
P.M., except Saturdays, Sundays and holidays.  Lessor shall provide at Lessor's expense all 
electricity for the Leased Premises necessary for lighting, equipment and accessories normal to 
office usage during business days from 7:00 A.M. to 9:00 P.M., weekends and holidays excepted.  
Lessor reserves the right to require Lessee to pay for excess usage by arrangement with Lessor.  
Lessor also reserves the right to separately meter the Leased Premises or any computer rooms 
or any other high energy uses and, in such event, the cost of such energy shall be at Lessee's 
sole expense.  Lessee shall make no alteration or additions to the electrical equipment and/or 
appliances on the Leased Premises without the prior written consent of Lessor.  Lessee agrees 
that at all times its use of electric current shall never exceed the capacity of the feeders to the 
Civic Center Building or the risers or wiring installation.  Lessor shall further provide all ballasts 
and starters used in the Leased Premises. 

 

7. Force Majeure.  Lessor does not warrant that any of the services to be provided in this 
Agreement will be free from interruptions caused by war, insurrection, civic commotion, riots, acts 
of God or the enemy, governmental action, repairs, renewals, improvements, alterations, strikes, 
lockouts, picketing, whether legal or illegal, accidents, inability of the Lessor to obtain fuel or 
supplies or any other cause or causes beyond the reasonable control of the Lessor.  Any such 
interruption of service shall never be deemed an eviction or disturbance of the Lessee's use and 
possession of the Leased Premises of any part therof, or render the Lessor liable to the Lessee 
for damages, or relieve the Lessee from performance of the Lessee's obligations under this 
Lease.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, if any of the services provided for in this agreement are 
interrupted and such interruptions substantially impairs Lessee's use of the Leased Premises for 
a period in excess of 21 days, the rent hereunder shall abate to the extent that the Leased 
Premises are not usable for Lessee's purposes under this Lease, beginning with the 21st day.  
Lessor shall use its best efforts to restore any of the services so interrupted as promptly as 
possible. 

 

8. Access to Leased Premises.  Lessor or Lessor's agents shall have the right to enter upon the 
Leased Premises to undertake janitorial services thereon and to inspect the same and to make 
such decorations, repairs, alterations, improvements or additions to the Leased Premises as 
Lessor may deem necessary or desirable.  If Lessee shall not be personally present to open and 
permit entry into the Leased Premises, at any time when for any reason an entry shall be deemed 
necessary by Lessor or Lessor's agent, Lessor or Lessor's agent may enter the same by a pass 
key and such entry shall not in any manner affect the obligations and covenants of this Lease.  
Nothing contained in this Lease shall be deemed or construed to impose upon Lessor any 
obligation, responsibilities or liabilities whatsoever for the care, supervision or repair of the 
Leased Premises, other than as provided in this Lease Agreement.  
Lessee is responsible to ensure ADA compliance on accessibility of the rooms and programs. 
This includes costs required to make interior doors, windows and furnishings accessible as 
required by law. 
 

 

9. Destruction of Leased Premises.  If the Leased Premises or the Civic Center Building are, in the 
sole judgement of Lessor, made untenable by fire or other casualty, Lessor shall elect by written 
notice to Lessee within 60 days after the date of the fire or casualty:  (a) to terminate this lease as 
of the date of the fire or casualty, or (b) proceed to repair, restore or rehabilitate the building or 
the Leased Premises to a reasonable tenantable condition within 120 working days after the date 
of the destruction.  In the event this Lease is not terminated pursuant to this section, rent shall 
abate on a daily basis during the period of untenability.   In the event of the termination of this 
Lease pursuant to this section, rent shall be apportioned on a daily basis and paid to the date of 
the fire or other casualty. 

 

10. Waiver of Claims and Subrogation.  Lessee hereby releases Lessor from any and all liability or 
responsibility to Lessee or anyone claiming through or under Lessee by way of subrogation or 
otherwise for any loss or damage to the Civic Center Building and Leased Premises, or to the 
contents of or personal property located in the Civic Center Building or Leased Premises caused 

24 of 85



by fire, theft, water or other casualty, whether or not said loss or damage may have been the 
result of the negligence of Lessor, its agents or employees, other Lessees or persons or the 
result of any other cause.  Lessee agrees to obtain whatever personal property or contents of 
insurance is sufficient or appropriate to protect its property against all of the foregoing losses or 
damage, including but not limited to fire insurance, with extended coverage, vandalism and 
malicious mischief, theft and mysterious disappearance endorsements and water and sprinkler 
damage insurance.  Lessee shall deposit with Lessor the appropriate policy or certificate 
evidencing the existence of such insurance.  Lessee agrees to have any and all such insurance 
coverage or any and all material damage insurance which may be carried endorsed with the 
following subrogation clause: 
 

"This insurance shall not be invalidated should the insured waive in writing prior to a loss any and 
all right or recovery against any party for loss occurring to the property described." 
 

The foregoing release of liability and waiver of the right of subrogation shall not be operative in 
any case where the effect is to invalidate insurance coverage. 

 

11. Indemnification.  Except for occurrences due to Lessor's sole negligence, Lessee agrees to 
indemnify, defend and save Lessor, its officers, directors, agents, and employees from and 
against any and all claims, damages, liens, suits, losses and expenses, including attorneys fees 
and costs, of any sort, whether for injuries to or death of any persons, for damage to property, 
including the property or services of Lessor, that may, allegedly may, arise out of, result from or 
occur in connection with the performance of this Lease, the conduct of the management of the 
business conducted by Lessee in the Leased Premises, Lessee's occupation of the Leased 
Premises, or the Civic Center Building, or from any breach or default on the part of Lessee in the 
performance of any covenant or agreement to be performed by Lessee pursuant to the terms of 
this Lease, or from any act or inaction of Lessee, its agents, contractors, servants, employees or 
licensees in and about the Leased Premises and Civic Center Building.  The indemnities hereby 
furnished will indemnify, provide a defense for, and pay any judgment rendered against Lessor, 
as a result of any occurrence resulting from the negligence of Lessee.  In the event the foregoing 
indemnities are void or in any respect restricted by law, Lessee shall nevertheless indemnify, 
defend and save the name indemnities harmless to the maximum extent permitted by law.  If 
Lessee fails to defend, Lessor may provide its own defense and Lessee shall pay upon demand 
all of Lessor's costs, charges and expenses, including attorneys fees and interest.  The 
covenants of this section shall survive and be enforceable and shall continue in full force and 
effect for the benefit of Lessor and its subsequent transferees, successors and assigns 
throughout the term of this Lease, and any renewal periods thereof, provided that the 
indemnification with regard to any matter involving hazardous or toxic substances or materials 
shall survive the expirations or termination of this Lease. 

 

12. Assignment and Subletting.  Lessee shall not, without the prior written consent of Lessor, which 
consent shall be in the sole and unrestricted option of Lessor: 
(a) Assign this Lease or any interest hereunder. 
(b) Permit any assignment of this Lease by operation of law. 
(c) Sublet the Leased Premises or any part thereof; or 
(d) Permit the use of these premises by any parties other than Lessee, its agents and 

employees.  Upon any permitted assignment or subletting, Lessee shall remain liable for 
the payment of rent and all obligations if Lessee in the absence of a release by Lessor. 

 

13. Public Liability Insurance and Other Insurance.  Lessee agrees to pay the premiums for public 
liability insurance (including liability under the safe place statute) insuring Lessee in at least the 
following amounts:  $500,000.000 for injuries to any one person, $500,000.00 for any one 
accident and $500,000.00 for property damage.  Lessee shall deposit with Lessor the appropriate 
policy or certificate evidencing the existence of insurance.  All insurance shall contain an 
endorsement providing that the insurance may not be canceled or materially altered within 30 
days prior written notice to Lessor from the insurance company.  The limits of Lessee's insurance 
coverage or any evidence of such coverage shall in no manner limit or otherwise alter Lessee's 

25 of 85



responsibilities or obligations under this Lease.  Lessor, its officers, agents and employees, shall 
be named as additional insureds on each public liability insurance policy and/or umbrella policy. 

 

14. Regulations and Laws.  Lessee shall not commit waste on the Leased Premises or the Civic 
Center Building and Lessee shall consistently and fully observe and comply with any and all laws, 
statutes, ordinances and regulations, federal, state, county or municipal, now or hereafter in 
force, applicable to the Leased Premises, or the Civic Center Building relating to its use and 
occupancy or to the making of repairs, or of changes, alterations or improvements, ordinary or 
extraordinary, including without limitation any applicable regulations pertaining to environmental 
health and safety, or imposing standards of conduct or liability for the management of hazardous 
substances or materials. 

 

15. Lessee's Default.  The occurrence of any of the following shall constitute an event of default: 
(a) Any delinquency in the payment of rent due and owing under this Lease Agreement, or 

delinquency in the performance of or compliance with any of the terms contained in this 
Lease Agreement to be performed by Lessee for a period of 14 days after receipt of 
written notice from Lessor to Lessee of such delinquency. 

(b) Filing by or against Lessee in any Court pursuant to any statute, either of the United 
States or of any State, of a petition in bankruptcy or insolvency, or for reorganization, or 
for the appointment of a receiver or trustee of all or a portion of Lessee's property, or an 
assignment by Lessee for the benefit of creditors. 

 

Upon the occurrence of an event of default, this Lease Agreement and all rights of Lessee shall 
terminate.  In addition to the automatic termination of this Lease Agreement and Lessee's rights 
hereunder, Lessor shall have the right to recover all unpaid rent and damages for any other 
default by Lessee. 
 

16. Notices.  Any notice, statement or demand required or permitted under this Lease shall be 
deemed delivered personally or when deposited by certified mail, return receipt requested, in the 
U.S. Mail, postage prepaid and addressed to the party for whom intended. 

 

LESSOR:  Baraboo Parks and Recreation Department 
   Baraboo Civic Center 
   124 2nd Street, Room 17 
   Baraboo, WI   53913 
 

LESSEE:  Boys & Girls Club of West Central Wisconsin-Baraboo/Sauk County 
   124 2nd Street, Room 29 
   Baraboo, WI 53913  
 

17. Surrender of Premises.  Upon termination of this Lease, by expiration or otherwise, Lessee shall 
surrender the Leased Premises to Lessor in as good condition as they were in at the beginning of 
the term, ordinary wear and tear accepted. 

 

18. Right to Perform.  If Lessee shall be delinquent in the performance of any of Lessee's obligations 
under this Lease Agreement, Lessor may cure such delinquency on behalf of Lessee by first 
giving written notice to Lessee of its intention to do so in Lessor's default notice to Lessee.  If 
Lessee fails to cure the delinquency in a timely fashion, Lessor may cure the delinquency, in 
which event Lessee shall reimburse Lessor for all sums paid to effect such cure, together with 
interest at the rate of 18 percent per annum and reasonable attorney’s fees. 

 

19. Quiet Enjoyment.  Lessee, upon payment of the rent as herein provided and upon performance of 
all the terms of this Lease Agreement, shall at all times during the Leased Term and during any 
extension of it peaceably and quietly enjoy the Leased Premises without any disturbance from 
Lessor or from any other person claiming through Lessor. 

 

20. Waiver of Potential Relocation Benefits.  Lessee acknowledges and understands that the Leased 
Premises is owned by the City of Baraboo, a public entity, and that it is conceivable that at some 
time in the future the Civic Center Building may be acquired by a third party for the purpose of 

26 of 85



undertaking a "public project" as defined in Chapter 32 of the Wisconsin Statutes or that the Civic 
Center Building may be used for offices for City Departments.  Lessee further acknowledges that 
if either of these events occur, it may be necessary to terminate this Lease thereby requiring 
Lessee to relocate and find a replacement rental premises at another location.  Lessee further 
acknowledges, understands and agrees that Lessor would not be willing to lease the Leased 
Premises to Lessee at this time at the rental set forth in the Lease Agreement if Lessor became 
obligated at a later point in time to provide relocation assistance to Lessee as a result of a "public 
project" being undertaken in the Civic Center Building. Therefore, in order to induce Lessor to 
enter into this Lease Agreement, and in consideration of Lessor leasing the Leased Premises to 
Lessee as set forth in the Lease, and further acknowledging and understanding that Lessor 
relying on the enforceability of this section in entering into the Lease Agreement, Lessee hereby 
warrants and represents that Lessee has been informed and is knowledgeable about its potential 
rights to payments and services under the Wisconsin Relocation Law and under the Wisconsin 
Eminent Domain Law and Lessee understands its potential rights in the event the Civic Center 
Building is acquired or used for a "public project" and Lessee hereby knowingly, voluntarily and 
without any reservation whatsoever waives any rights to relocation benefits or assistance, 
including, but not limited to, moving expense, replacement rental premises, mortgage refinancing, 
expenses incidental to purchase of a replacement business premises, and any other relocation 
services or assistance whatsoever allowed by state or federal law, without limitation, during the 
term of this Lease Agreement, and any extensions or renewals therof, and so long as Lessee 
occupies any portion of the Leased Premises. 

 

21. Miscellaneous.  This Agreement and the attached exhibit, if any, contains the entire agreement 
between Lessor and Lessee concerning the Leased Premises and there are no other 
agreements, either written or oral.  Each provision hereof shall extend to and shall, as the case 
may require, bind and inure to the benefit of Lessor and Lessee and their respective successors 
and assigns.  The captions in this Lease are inserted only as matters of convenience and for 
reference, and in no way define or limit the scope or intent of the various provisions, terms or 
conditions hereof.  The laws of the State of Wisconsin shall govern the validity and performance 
and enforcement of this Lease.  If any term, covenant or condition of this Lease shall, to any 
extent, be invalid or unenforceable, the remainder of this Lease shall not be affected and each 
term, covenant or condition of this Lease shall be valid and be enforced to the maximum extent 
permitted by law.  No modification of this Lease Agreement shall be binding on the parties unless 
executed in writing.  Failure of Lessor to enforce any rights or remedies to which it may be 
entitled hereunder shall not constitute a waiver or estoppel thereof nor prevent the exercise or 
enforcement of any rights or remedies at any time thereafter with respect to either a preceding or 
subsequent breach of any terms, conditions, covenants or agreements contained in this 
Agreement.  All amounts to be paid by Lessee under this Lease (including rent) shall bear interest 
10 days after the due date until paid at the rate of 18% per annum. 

 
 
In witness whereof, the parties have executed this Lease on the 1st day of January, 2023. 
 
 
LESSOR: City of Baraboo    By:__________________________ 
  Parks & Recreation Department   Mike Hardy, Director 
         
        Date Signed:__________________ 
 
 
 
LESSEE: Boys & Girls Club of West Central WI By:__________________________ 
         Karen DeSanto, Director 
         
        Date Signed:__________________ 
 

27 of 85



NBR - 3

RESOLUTION NO. 2022 - Dated: September 27, 2022

The City of Baraboo, Wisconsin

Background: This resolution seeks the approval of entering into a lease with the Baraboo Area Senior
Citizens Organization for the rental of space at the Civic Center at the rate of $307.27 per month. The lease
rate reflects a 65% rent reduction by the City to assist BASCO in offering space for a Senior Center for area
senior citizens.
The lease was recommended unanimously by the Parks Commission at their August 8, 2022 regular meeting.
Fiscal Note: [ ] Not Required [ x ] Budgeted Expenditure [ ] Not Budgeted
Comments: The recommended lease rate was used to develop the 2023 budget.

Resolved, by the Common Council of the City of Baraboo, Sauk County, Wisconsin:

THAT the Baraboo Area Senior Citizens Organization lease for space at the Civic Center in
2023 be approved and that the lease rate be reduced to 35% to allow rent to be paid at $307.27 per
month.

Offered by: Parks Commission Approved:
Motion:
Second: Attest:

28 of 85



LEASE AGREEMENT 
 

This Lease Agreement is made this 1st day of January, 2023, between the City of Baraboo, Wisconsin, 
(City), Lessor, and Baraboo Area Senior Citizen’s Organization (Lessee). 
 

WITNESSETHS: 
 

In consideration of the mutual covenants and pursuant to and subject to the terms and conditions 
hereinafter set forth, Lessor and Lessee agree as follows: 
 

1. Leased Premises.  Lessor does hereby lease to Lessee Rooms 21 & 24 of the premises located 
at the Baraboo Civic Center, 124 Second Street, Baraboo, Wisconsin. 

 

HEREINAFTER REFERRED TO AS THE LEASED PREMISES: 
 

2. Term.  The term of this Lease shall be from January 1, 2023 to December 31, 2023.  Lessor 
agrees that if Lessor does not intend to enter into a new Lease Agreement with Lessee 
commencing on January 1, 2024, for at least an additional six months, Lessor shall give written 
notice to Lessee of such intent on or before October 31, 2023.  If Lessor does not give Lessee 
such notice by October 31, 2023, Lessor agrees that the above Lease shall be automatically 
extended on a month to month basis commencing on January 1, 2024, provided, however, either 
Lessor or Lessee shall have the right during the extended lease period to terminate the Lease by 
giving a 60 day advance written notice of their/its intent to terminate the Lease at the end of the 
60 days.  Leases may only be terminated as of the last day of a month.  Written notice shall be 
given in accordance with Section 16 of the lease. 

 

3. Rent.  Lessor shall provide the lessee use of Rooms 21 & 24 during term of the annual lease 
agreement at a cost of $307.27 per month.  
 

4. Purpose.  Lessee shall use the Leased Premises only for the purpose of operating Baraboo Area 
Senior Center and Lessee agrees that the use of the Leased Premises may not be changed 
without the express written consent of the Lessor. 

 

5. Maintenance and Repairs.  Lessor shall, at Lessor's expense, keep the Civic Center Building in 
good tenantable condition. Lessor agrees to provide all major structural repairs and 
improvements to the Civic Center Building, as well as to the electrical, plumbing, heating and 
ventilating systems.  Any repairs necessitated by the acts and omissions of Lessee shall be 
Lessee's responsibility.  Lessee shall keep the Leased Premises in a neat, clean and respectable 
condition and Lessee shall make such repairs on the Leased Premises as shall be necessary to 
keep said premises in at least as good a condition as when delivered to it by Lessor.  Unless 
otherwise agreed in writing, Lessee shall, at its own expense, have the right to make such 
alterations and improvements to the Leased Premises as shall be reasonably necessary for 
Lessee's use of the Leased Premises for the operation of a Senior Center, provided, however, 
that prior to the commencement of any such alteration or improvement, Lessor shall in each case 
have approval in writing such alterations or improvements and the plans and specifications 
therefore.  Lessee shall be responsible for maintaining and keeping the Leased Premises in a 
safe condition for its employees, agents, representatives, invitees and customers.  Lessee's 
taking of possession of the Leased Premises shall be conclusive evidence that the Leased 
Premises were in good order and in a safe and satisfactory condition when Lessee took 
possession.  Lessee agrees that no promise of Lessor to alter, remodel, decorate, clean or 
improve the Leased Premises and no representation respecting the condition of the Leased 
Premises has been made by Lessor to Lessee unless the same is set forth in this Agreement.  
Lessee shall be fully responsible for noticing and correcting any unsafe condition on the Leased 
Premises.  Lessor shall provide reasonable janitorial services for the Leased Premises. 

 

6. Utilities.  Lessor, as long as this Lease is in effect, shall furnish at its sole cost and expense all 
heat and utilities for the Leased Premises, except television, internet and telephone.  Lessor 
agrees to furnish heat to the Leased Premises on business days only from 7:00 A.M. to 9:00 

29 of 85



P.M., except Saturdays, Sundays and holidays.  Lessor shall provide at Lessor's expense all 
electricity for the Leased Premises necessary for lighting, equipment and accessories normal to 
office usage during business days from 7:00 A.M. to 9:00 P.M., Saturdays, Sundays and holidays 
excepted.  Lessor reserves the right to require Lessee to pay for excess usage by arrangement 
with Lessor.  Lessor also reserves the right to separately meter the Leased Premises or any 
computer rooms or any other high energy uses and, in such event, the cost of such energy shall 
be at Lessee's sole expense.  Lessee shall make no alteration or additions to the electrical 
equipment and/or appliances on the Leased Premises without the prior written consent of Lessor.  
Lessee agrees that at all times its use of electric current shall never exceed the capacity of the 
feeders to the Civic Center Building or the risers or wiring installation.  Lessor shall further provide 
all ballasts and starters used in the Leased Premises. 

 

7. Force Majeure.  Lessor does not warrant that any of the services to be provided in this 
Agreement will be free from interruptions caused by war, insurrection, civic commotion, riots, acts 
of God or the enemy, governmental action, repairs, renewals, improvements, alterations, strikes, 
lockouts, picketing, whether legal or illegal, accidents, inability of the Lessor to obtain fuel or 
supplies or any other cause or causes beyond the reasonable control of the Lessor.  Any such 
interruption of service shall never be deemed an eviction or disturbance of the Lessee's use and 
possession of the Leased Premises of any part therof, or render the Lessor liable to the Lessee 
for damages, or relieve the Lessee from performance of the Lessee's obligations under this 
Lease.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, if any of the services provided for in this agreement are 
interrupted and such interruptions substantially impairs Lessee's use of the Leased Premises for 
a period in excess of 21 days, the rent hereunder shall abate to the extent that the Leased 
Premises are not usable for Lessee's purposes under this Lease, beginning with the 21st day.  
Lessor shall use its best efforts to restore any of the services so interrupted as promptly as 
possible. 

 

8. Access to Leased Premises.  Lessor or Lessor's agents shall have the right to enter upon the 
Leased Premises to undertake janitorial services thereon and to inspect the same and to make 
such decorations, repairs, alterations, improvements or additions to the Leased Premises as 
Lessor may deem necessary or desirable.  If Lessee shall not be personally present to open and 
permit entry into the Leased Premises, at any time when for any reason an entry shall be deemed 
necessary by Lessor or Lessor's agent, Lessor or Lessor's agent may enter the same by a pass 
key and such entry shall not in any manner affect the obligations and covenants of this Lease.  
Nothing contained in this Lease shall be deemed or construed to impose upon Lessor any 
obligation, responsibilities or liabilities whatsoever for the care, supervision or repair of the 
Leased Premises, other than as provided in this Lease Agreement. 
Lessee is responsible to ensure ADA compliance on accessibility of the rooms and programs. 
This includes costs required to make interior doors, windows and furnishings accessible as 
required by law. 

 

9. Destruction of Leased Premises.  If the Leased Premises or the Civic Center Building are, in the 
sole judgement of Lessor, made untenable by fire or other casualty, Lessor shall elect by written 
notice to Lessee within 60 days after the date of the fire or casualty:  (a) to terminate this lease as 
of the date of the fire or casualty, or (b) proceed to repair, restore or rehabilitate the building or 
the Leased Premises to a reasonable tenantable condition within 120 working days after the date 
of the destruction.  In the event this Lease is not terminated pursuant to this section, rent shall 
abate on a daily basis during the period of untenability.   In the event of the termination of this 
Lease pursuant to this section, rent shall be apportioned on a daily basis and paid to the date of 
the fire or other casualty. 

 

10. Waiver of Claims and Subrogation.  Lessee hereby releases Lessor from any and all liability or 
responsibility to Lessee or anyone claiming through or under Lessee by way of subrogation or 
otherwise for any loss or damage to the Civic Center Building and Leased Premises, or to the 
contents of or personal property located in the Civic Center Building or Leased Premises caused 
by fire, theft, water or other casualty, whether or not said loss or damage may have been the 
result of the negligence of Lessor, its agents or employees, other Lessees or persons or the 

30 of 85



result of any other cause.  Lessee agrees to obtain whatever personal property or contents of 
insurance is sufficient or appropriate to protect its property against all of the foregoing losses or 
damage, including but not limited to fire insurance, with extended coverage, vandalism and 
malicious mischief, theft and mysterious disappearance endorsements and water and sprinkler 
damage insurance.  Lessee shall deposit with Lessor the appropriate policy or certificate 
evidencing the existence of such insurance.  Lessee agrees to have any and all such insurance 
coverage or any and all material damage insurance which may be carried endorsed with the 
following subrogation clause: 
"This insurance shall not be invalidated should the insured waive in writing prior to a loss any and 
all right or recovery against any party for loss occurring to the property described." 
The foregoing release of liability and waiver of the right of subrogation shall not be operative in 
any case where the effect is to invalidate insurance coverage. 

 

11. Indemnification.  Except for occurrences due to Lessor's sole negligence, Lessee agrees to 
indemnify, defend and save Lessor, its officers, directors, agents, and employees from and 
against any and all claims, damages, liens, suits, losses and expenses, including attorneys fees 
and costs, of any sort, whether for injuries to or death of any persons, for damage to property, 
including the property or services of Lessor, that may, allegedly may, arise out of, result from or 
occur in connection with the performance of this Lease, the conduct of the management of the 
business conducted by Lessee in the Leased Premises, Lessee's occupation of the Leased 
Premises, or the Civic Center Building, or from any breach or default on the part of Lessee in the 
performance of any covenant or agreement to be performed by Lessee pursuant to the terms of 
this Lease, or from any act or inaction of Lessee, its agents, contractors, servants, employees or 
licensees in and about the Leased Premises and Civic Center Building.  The indemnities hereby 
furnished will indemnify, provide a defense for, and pay any judgment rendered against Lessor, 
as a result of any occurrence resulting from the negligence of Lessee.  In the event the foregoing 
indemnities are void or in any respect restricted by law, Lessee shall nevertheless indemnify, 
defend and save the name indemnities harmless to the maximum extent permitted by law.  If 
Lessee fails to defend, Lessor may provide its own defense and Lessee shall pay upon demand 
all of Lessor's costs, charges and expenses, including attorneys fees and interest.  The 
covenants of this section shall survive and be enforceable and shall continue in full force and 
effect for the benefit of Lessor and its subsequent transferees, successors and assigns 
throughout the term of this Lease, and any renewal periods thereof, provided that the 
indemnification with regard to any matter involving hazardous or toxic substances or materials 
shall survive the expirations or termination of this Lease. 

 

12. Assignment and Subletting.  Lessee shall not, without the prior written consent of Lessor, which 
consent shall be in the sole and unrestricted option of Lessor: 
(a) Assign this Lease or any interest hereunder. 
(b) Permit any assignment of this Lease by operation of law. 
(c) Sublet the Leased Premises or any part thereof; or 
(d) Permit the use of these premises by any parties other than Lessee, its agents and 

employees.  Upon any permitted assignment or subletting, Lessee shall remain liable for 
the payment of rent and all obligations if Lessee in the absence of a release by Lessor. 

 

13. Public Liability Insurance and Other Insurance.  Lessee agrees to pay the premiums for public 
liability insurance (including liability under the safe place statute) insuring Lessee in at least the 
following amounts:  $500,000.000 for injuries to any one person, $500,000.00 for any one 
accident and $500,000.00 for property damage.  Lessee shall deposit with Lessor the appropriate 
policy or certificate evidencing the existence of insurance.  All insurance shall contain an 
endorsement providing that the insurance may not be canceled or materially altered within 30 
days prior written notice to Lessor from the insurance company.  The limits of Lessee's insurance 
coverage or any evidence of such coverage shall in no manner limit or otherwise alter Lessee's 
responsibilities or obligations under this Lease.  Lessor, its officers, agents and employees, shall 
be named as additional insureds on each public liability insurance policy and/or umbrella policy. 

 

31 of 85



14. Regulations and Laws.  Lessee shall not commit waste on the Leased Premises or the Civic 
Center Building and Lessee shall consistently and fully observe and comply with any and all laws, 
statutes, ordinances and regulations, federal, state, county or municipal, now or hereafter in 
force, applicable to the Leased Premises, or the Civic Center Building relating to its use and 
occupancy or to the making of repairs, or of changes, alterations or improvements, ordinary or 
extraordinary, including without limitation any applicable regulations pertaining to environmental 
health and safety, or imposing standards of conduct or liability for the management of hazardous 
substances or materials. 

 

15. Lessee's Default.  The occurrence of any of the following shall constitute an event of default: 
(a) Any delinquency in the payment of rent due and owing under this Lease Agreement, or 

delinquency in the performance of or compliance with any of the terms contained in this 
Lease Agreement to be performed by Lessee for a period of 14 days after receipt of 
written notice from Lessor to Lessee of such delinquency. 

(b) Filing by or against Lessee in any Court pursuant to any statute, either of the United 
States or of any State, of a petition in bankruptcy or insolvency, or for reorganization, or 
for the appointment of a receiver or trustee of all or a portion of Lessee's property, or an 
assignment by Lessee for the benefit of creditors. 

 

Upon the occurrence of an event of default, this Lease Agreement and all rights of Lessee shall 
terminate.  In addition to the automatic termination of this Lease Agreement and Lessee's rights 
hereunder, Lessor shall have the right to recover all unpaid rent and damages for any other 
default by Lessee. 
 

16. Notices.  Any notice, statement or demand required or permitted under this Lease shall be 
deemed delivered personally or when deposited by certified mail, return receipt requested, in the 
U.S. Mail, postage prepaid and addressed to the party for whom intended. 

 

LESSOR:  Baraboo Parks and Recreation Department 
   124 2nd Street, Room 17 
   Baraboo, WI   53913 
 

LESSEE:  Baraboo Area Senior Citizen’s Organization 
   Baraboo Area Senior Center 
   124 2nd Street, Room 24 
   Baraboo, WI 53913 
 

17. Surrender of Premises.  Upon termination of this Lease, by expiration or otherwise, Lessee shall 
surrender the Leased Premises to Lessor in as good condition as they were in at the beginning of 
the term, ordinary wear and tear accepted. 

 

18. Right to Perform.  If Lessee shall be delinquent in the performance of any of Lessee's obligations 
under this Lease Agreement, Lessor may cure such delinquency on behalf of Lessee by first 
giving written notice to Lessee of its intention to do so in Lessor's default notice to Lessee.  If 
Lessee fails to cure the delinquency in a timely fashion, Lessor may cure the delinquency, in 
which event Lessee shall reimburse Lessor for all sums paid to effect such cure, together with 
interest at the rate of 18 percent per annum and reasonable attorney’s fees. 

 

19. Quiet Enjoyment.  Lessee, upon payment of the rent as herein provided and upon performance of 
all the terms of this Lease Agreement, shall at all times during the Leased Term and during any 
extension of it peaceably and quietly enjoy the Leased Premises without any disturbance from 
Lessor or from any other person claiming through Lessor. 

 

20. Waiver of Potential Relocation Benefits.  Lessee acknowledges and understands that the Leased 
Premises is owned by the City of Baraboo, a public entity, and that it is conceivable that at some 
time in the future the Civic Center Building may be acquired by a third party for the purpose of 
undertaking a "public project" as defined in Chapter 32 of the Wisconsin Statutes or that the Civic 
Center Building may be used for offices for City Departments.  Lessee further acknowledges that 
if either of these events occur, it may be necessary to terminate this Lease thereby requiring 

32 of 85



Lessee to relocate and find a replacement rental premises at another location.  Lessee further 
acknowledges, understands and agrees that Lessor would not be willing to lease the Leased 
Premises to Lessee at this time at the rental set forth in the Lease Agreement if Lessor became 
obligated at a later point in time to provide relocation assistance to Lessee as a result of a "public 
project" being undertaken in the Civic Center Building. Therefore, in order to induce Lessor to 
enter into this Lease Agreement, and in consideration of Lessor leasing the Leased Premises to 
Lessee as set forth in the Lease, and further acknowledging and understanding that Lessor 
relying on the enforceability of this section in entering into the Lease Agreement, Lessee hereby 
warrants and represents that Lessee has been informed and is knowledgeable about its potential 
rights to payments and services under the Wisconsin Relocation Law and under the Wisconsin 
Eminent Domain Law and Lessee understands its potential rights in the event the Civic Center 
Building is acquired or used for a "public project" and Lessee hereby knowingly, voluntarily and 
without any reservation whatsoever waives any rights to relocation benefits or assistance, 
including, but not limited to, moving expense, replacement rental premises, mortgage refinancing, 
expenses incidental to purchase of a replacement business premises, and any other relocation 
services or assistance whatsoever allowed by state or federal law, without limitation, during the 
term of this Lease Agreement, and any extensions or renewals therof, and so long as Lessee 
occupies any portion of the Leased Premises. 

 

21. Miscellaneous.  This Agreement and the attached exhibit, if any, contains the entire agreement 
between Lessor and Lessee concerning the Leased Premises and there are no other 
agreements, either written or oral.  Each provision hereof shall extend to and shall, as the case 
may require, bind and inure to the benefit of Lessor and Lessee and their respective successors 
and assigns.  The captions in this Lease are inserted only as matters of convenience and for 
reference, and in no way define or limit the scope or intent of the various provisions, terms or 
conditions hereof.  The laws of the State of Wisconsin shall govern the validity and performance 
and enforcement of this Lease.  If any term, covenant or condition of this Lease shall, to any 
extent, be invalid or unenforceable, the remainder of this Lease shall not be affected and each 
term, covenant or condition of this Lease shall be valid and be enforced to the maximum extent 
permitted by law.  No modification of this Lease Agreement shall be binding on the parties unless 
executed in writing.  Failure of Lessor to enforce any rights or remedies to which it may be 
entitled hereunder shall not constitute a waiver or estoppel thereof nor prevent the exercise or 
enforcement of any rights or remedies at any time thereafter with respect to either a preceding or 
subsequent breach of any terms, conditions, covenants or agreements contained in this 
Agreement.  All amounts to be paid by Lessee under this Lease (including rent) shall bear interest 
10 days after the due date until paid at the rate of 18% per annum. 

 
 
In witness whereof, the parties have executed this Lease on the 1st day of January, 2023. 
 
 
 
LESSOR: City of Baraboo   By:________________________________ 
  Parks & Recreation Department  Mike Hardy, Director 
        
       Date Signed:________________________ 
 
 
 
LESSEE: BASCO     By:________________________________ 

 Baraboo Area Senior Center    
        
       Date Signed:________________________ 
 
 

33 of 85



NBR - 4

RESOLUTION NO. 2022 - Dated: September 27, 2022

The City of Baraboo, Wisconsin

Background: This resolution seeks the approval of entering into a lease with Stage III Theater For Youth
for the rental of space at the Civic Center at the rate of $382.36 per month. The lease rate reflects a 50% rent
reduction by the City to assist Stage III in offering space for a youth community theater program.
The lease was recommended unanimously by the Parks Commission at their August 8, 2022 regular meeting.
Fiscal Note: [ ] Not Required [ x ] Budgeted Expenditure [ ] Not Budgeted
Comments: The recommended lease rate was used to develop the 2023 budget.

Resolved, by the Common Council of the City of Baraboo, Sauk County, Wisconsin:

THAT the Stage III Theater For Youth lease for space at the Civic Center in 2023 be approved
and that the lease rate be reduced to 50% to allow rent to be paid at $382.36 per month.

Offered by: Parks Commission Approved:
Motion:
Second: Attest:

34 of 85



LEASE AGREEMENT 
 

This Lease Agreement is made this 1st day of January, 2023, between the City of Baraboo, Wisconsin, 
(City), Lessor, and Stage III Theater For Youth, Inc. (Lessee). 
 

WITNESSETHS: 
 

In consideration of the mutual covenants and pursuant to and subject to the terms and conditions 
hereinafter set forth, Lessor and Lessee agree as follows: 
 

1. Leased Premises.  Lessor does hereby lease to Lessee Rooms 37, 37A & 38 of the premises 
located at the Baraboo Civic Center, 124 Second Street, Baraboo, Wisconsin. 

 

HEREINAFTER REFERRED TO AS THE LEASED PREMISES: 
 

2. Term.  The term of this Lease shall be from January 1, 2023 to December 31, 2023.   
 

3. Rent.  Lessee shall pay to Lessor at its address set forth below, the sum of $382.36 per month.  
Rental payments shall be made on or before the first day of each month during this Lease.  All rent 
shall be paid without demand and without any setoff, counterclaim or deduction whatsoever. 

 

4. Purpose.  Lessee shall use the Leased Premises only for the purpose of operating a classroom 
and rehearsal area as well as storage for Stage III and Lessee agrees that the use of the Leased 
Premises may not be changed without the express written consent of the Lessor. 

 

5. Maintenance and Repairs.  Lessor shall, at Lessor's expense, keep the Civic Center Building in 
good tenantable condition. Lessor agrees to provide all major structural repairs and improvements 
to the Civic Center Building, as well as to the electrical, plumbing, heating and ventilating systems.  
Any repairs necessitated by the acts and omissions of Lessee shall be Lessee's responsibility.  
Lessee shall keep the Leased Premises in a neat, clean and respectable condition and Lessee 
shall make such repairs on the Leased Premises as shall be necessary to keep said premises in 
at least as good a condition as when delivered to it by Lessor.  Unless otherwise agreed in writing, 
Lessee shall, at its own expense, have the right to make such alterations and improvements to the 
Leased Premises, provided, however, that prior to the commencement of any such alteration or 
improvement, Lessor shall in each case have approval in writing such alterations or improvements 
and the plans and specifications therefore.  Lessee shall be responsible for maintaining and 
keeping the Leased Premises in a safe condition for its employees, agents, representatives, 
invitees and customers.  Lessee's taking of possession of the Leased Premises shall be conclusive 
evidence that the Leased Premises were in good order and in a safe and satisfactory condition 
when Lessee took possession.  Lessee agrees that no promise of Lessor to alter, remodel, 
decorate, clean or improve the Leased Premises and no representation respecting the condition of 
the Leased Premises has been made by Lessor to Lessee unless the same is set forth in this 
Agreement.  Lessee shall be fully responsible for noticing and correcting any unsafe condition on 
the Leased Premises.  Lessor shall provide reasonable janitorial services for the Leased Premises. 

 

6. Utilities.  Lessor, as long as this Lease is in effect, shall furnish at its sole cost and expense all heat 
and utilities for the Leased Premises, except cable TV, internet and telephone.  Lessor agrees to 
furnish heat and air conditioning to the Leased Premises only on weekdays from 7:00 A.M. to 9:00 
P.M.  Lessor shall provide at Lessor's expense all electricity for the Leased Premises necessary 
for lighting, equipment and accessories normal to office usage during business days from 7:00 A.M. 
to 9:00 P.M., weekends and holidays excepted.  Lessor reserves the right to require Lessee to pay 
for excess usage by arrangement with Lessor.  Lessor also reserves the right to separately meter 
the Leased Premises or any computer rooms or any other high energy uses and, in such event, 
the cost of such energy shall be at Lessee's sole expense.  Lessee shall make no alteration or 
additions to the electrical equipment and/or appliances on the Leased Premises without the prior 
written consent of Lessor.  Lessee agrees that at all times its use of electric current shall never 
exceed the capacity of the feeders to the Civic Center Building or the risers or wiring installation.  
Lessor shall further provide all ballasts and starters used in the Leased Premises. 

 

35 of 85



7. Force Majeure.  Lessor does not warrant that any of the services to be provided in this Agreement 
will be free from interruptions caused by war, insurrection, civic commotion, riots, acts of God, 
governmental action, repairs, renewals, improvements, alterations, strikes, lockouts, picketing, 
whether legal or illegal, accidents, inability of the Lessor to obtain fuel or supplies or any other 
cause or causes beyond the reasonable control of the Lessor.  Any such interruption of service 
shall never be deemed an eviction or disturbance of the Lessee's use and possession of the Leased 
Premises of any part therof, or render the Lessor liable to the Lessee for damages, or relieve the 
Lessee from performance of the Lessee's obligations under this Lease.  Notwithstanding the 
foregoing, if any of the services provided for in this agreement are interrupted and such 
interruptions substantially impairs Lessee's use of the Leased Premises for a period in excess of 
21 days, the rent hereunder shall abate to the extent that the Leased Premises are not usable for 
Lessee's purposes under this Lease, beginning with the 21st day.  Lessor shall use its best efforts 
to restore any of the services so interrupted as promptly as possible. 

 

8. Access to Leased Premises.  Lessor or Lessor's agents shall have the right to enter upon the 
Leased Premises to undertake janitorial services thereon and to inspect the same and to make 
such decorations, repairs, alterations, improvements or additions to the Leased Premises as Lessor 
may deem necessary or desirable.  If Lessee shall not be personally present to open and permit 
entry into the Leased Premises, at any time when for any reason an entry shall be deemed 
necessary by Lessor or Lessor's agent, Lessor or Lessor's agent may enter the same by a pass 
key and such entry shall not in any manner affect the obligations and covenants of this Lease.  
Nothing contained in this Lease shall be deemed or construed to impose upon Lessor any 
obligation, responsibilities or liabilities whatsoever for the care, supervision or repair of the Leased 
Premises, other than as provided in this Lease Agreement. 

 

9. Destruction of Leased Premises.  If the Leased Premises or the Civic Center Building are, in the 
sole judgement of Lessor, made untenable by fire or other casualty, Lessor shall elect by written 
notice to Lessee within 60 days after the date of the fire or casualty:  (a) to terminate this lease as 
of the date of the fire or casualty, or (b) proceed to repair, restore or rehabilitate the building or the 
Leased Premises to a reasonable tenantable condition within 120 working days after the date of 
the destruction.  In the event this Lease is not terminated pursuant to this section, rent shall abate 
on a daily basis during the period of untenability.   In the event of the termination of this Lease 
pursuant to this section, rent shall be apportioned on a daily basis and paid to the date of the fire 
or other casualty. 

 

10. Waiver of Claims and Subrogation.  Lessee hereby releases Lessor from any and all liability or 
responsibility to Lessee or anyone claiming through or under Lessee by way of subrogation or 
otherwise for any loss or damage to the Civic Center Building and Leased Premises, or to the 
contents of or personal property located in the Civic Center Building or Leased Premises caused 
by fire, theft, water or other casualty, whether or not said loss or damage may have been the result 
of the negligence of Lessor, its agents or employees, other Lessees or persons or the result of any 
other cause.  Lessee agrees to obtain whatever personal property or contents of insurance is 
sufficient or appropriate to protect its property against all of the foregoing losses or damage, 
including but not limited to fire insurance, with extended coverage, vandalism and malicious 
mischief, theft and mysterious disappearance endorsements and water and sprinkler damage 
insurance.  Lessee shall deposit with Lessor the appropriate policy or certificate evidencing the 
existence of such insurance.  Lessee agrees to have any and all such insurance coverage or any 
and all material damage insurance which may be carried endorsed with the following subrogation 
clause: 
"This insurance shall not be invalidated should the insured waive in writing prior to a loss any and 
all right or recovery against any party for loss occurring to the property described." 
The foregoing release of liability and waiver of the right of subrogation shall not be operative in any 
case where the effect is to invalidate insurance coverage. 

 

11. Indemnification.  Except to the extent due to Lessor's negligence, Lessee agrees to indemnify, 
defend and save Lessor, its officers, directors, agents, and employees from and against any and 
all claims, damages, liens, suits, losses and expenses, including attorneys fees and costs, of any 

36 of 85



sort, whether for injuries to or death of any persons, for damage to property, including the property 
or services of Lessor, that may, allegedly may, arise out of, result from or occur in connection with 
the performance of this Lease, the conduct of the management of the business conducted by 
Lessee in the Leased Premises, Lessee's occupation of the Leased Premises, or the Civic Center 
Building, or from any breach or default on the part of Lessee in the performance of any covenant 
or agreement to be performed by Lessee pursuant to the terms of this Lease, or from any act or 
inaction of Lessee, its agents, contractors, servants, employees or licensees in and about the 
Leased Premises and Civic Center Building.  The indemnities hereby furnished will indemnify, 
provide a defense for, and pay any judgment rendered against Lessor, as a result of any occurrence 
resulting from the negligence of Lessee.  In the event the foregoing indemnities are void or in any 
respect restricted by law, Lessee shall nevertheless indemnify, defend and save the name 
indemnities harmless to the maximum extent permitted by law.  If Lessee fails to defend, Lessor 
may provide its own defense and Lessee shall pay upon demand all of Lessor's costs, charges and 
expenses, including attorneys fees and interest.  The covenants of this section shall survive and 
be enforceable and shall continue in full force and effect for the benefit of Lessor and its subsequent 
transferees, successors and assigns throughout the term of this Lease, and any renewal periods 
thereof, provided that the indemnification with regard to any matter involving hazardous or toxic 
substances or materials shall survive the expirations or termination of this Lease. 

 

12. Assignment and Subletting.  Lessee shall not, without the prior written consent of Lessor, which 
consent shall be in the sole and unrestricted option of Lessor: 
(a) Assign this Lease or any interest hereunder. 
(b) Permit any assignment of this Lease by operation of law. 
(c) Sublet the Leased Premises or any part thereof; or 
(d) Permit the use of these premises by any parties other than Lessee, its agents and 

employees.  Upon any permitted assignment or subletting, Lessee shall remain liable for 
the payment of rent and all obligations if Lessee in the absence of a release by Lessor. 

 

13. Public Liability Insurance and Other Insurance.  Lessee agrees to pay the premiums for public 
liability insurance (including liability under the safe place statute) insuring Lessee in at least the 
following amounts:  $500,000.00 for injuries to any one person, $500,000.00 for any one accident 
and $500,000.00 for property damage.  All insurance shall contain an endorsement providing that 
the insurance may not be canceled or materially altered within 30 days prior written notice to Lessor 
from the insurance company.  The limits of Lessee's insurance coverage or any evidence of such 
coverage shall in no manner limit or otherwise alter Lessee's responsibilities or obligations under 
this Lease. Lessor, its officers, agents and employees, shall be named as additional insureds on 
the above referenced public liability policy, as respects the sole negligence of the Lessee, for 
damages and related expenses that may arise out of the performance of this Lease or directly 
related to the occupation of these premises. Lessor shall carry building replacement cost insurance 
for the Premises. The parties shall provide each other a certificate of insurance evidencing that 
such coverage is in effect during the term of this Agreement. 

 

14. Regulations and Laws.  Lessee shall not commit waste on the Leased Premises or the Civic Center 
Building and Lessee shall consistently and fully observe and comply with any and all laws, statutes, 
ordinances and regulations, federal, state, county or municipal, now or hereafter in force, applicable 
to the Leased Premises, or the Civic Center Building relating to its use and occupancy or to the 
making of repairs, or of changes, alterations or improvements, ordinary or extraordinary, including 
without limitation any applicable regulations pertaining to environmental health and safety, or 
imposing standards of conduct or liability for the management of hazardous substances or 
materials. 

 

15. Lessee's Default.  The occurrence of any of the following shall constitute an event of default: 
(a) Any delinquency in the payment of rent due and owing under this Lease Agreement, or 

delinquency in the performance of or compliance with any of the terms contained in this 
Lease Agreement to be performed by Lessee for a period of 14 days after receipt of written 
notice from Lessor to Lessee of such delinquency. 

37 of 85



(b) Filing by or against Lessee in any Court pursuant to any statute, either of the United States 
or of any State, of a petition in bankruptcy or insolvency, or for reorganization, or for the 
appointment of a receiver or trustee of all or a portion of Lessee's property, or an assignment 
by Lessee for the benefit of creditors. 

 

Upon the occurrence of an event of default, this Lease Agreement and all rights of Lessee shall 
terminate.  In addition to the automatic termination of this Lease Agreement and Lessee's rights 
hereunder, Lessor shall have the right to recover all unpaid rent and damages for any other default 
by Lessee. 
 

16. Notices.  Any notice, statement or demand required or permitted under this Lease shall be deemed 
delivered personally or when deposited by certified mail, return receipt requested, in the U.S. Mail, 
postage prepaid and addressed to the party for whom intended. 

 

LESSOR:  Baraboo Parks and Recreation Department 
   124 2nd Street, Room 17 
   Baraboo, WI   53913 
 
LESSEE:  Stage III Theater For Youth, Inc. 
   101 11th St. 
   Baraboo, WI 53913 
 

17. Surrender of Premises.  Upon termination of this Lease, by expiration or otherwise, Lessee shall 
surrender the Leased Premises to Lessor in as good condition as they were in at the beginning of 
the term, ordinary wear and tear accepted. 

 

18. Right to Perform.  If Lessee shall be delinquent in the performance of any of Lessee's obligations 
under this Lease Agreement, Lessor may cure such delinquency on behalf of Lessee by first giving 
written notice to Lessee of its intention to do so in Lessor's default notice to Lessee.  If Lessee fails 
to cure the delinquency in a timely fashion, Lessor may cure the delinquency, in which event Lessee 
shall reimburse Lessor for all sums paid to effect such cure, together with interest at the rate of 18 
percent per annum and reasonable attorneys fees. 

 

19. Quiet Enjoyment.  Lessee, upon payment of the rent as herein provided and upon performance of 
all the terms of this Lease Agreement, shall at all times during the Leased Term and during any 
extension of it peaceably and quietly enjoy the Leased Premises without any disturbance from 
Lessor or from any other person claiming through Lessor. 

 

20. Waiver of Potential Relocation Benefits.  Lessee acknowledges and understands that the Leased 
Premises is owned by the City of Baraboo, a public entity, and that it is conceivable that at some 
time in the future the Civic Center Building may be acquired by a third party for the purpose of 
undertaking a "public project" as defined in Chapter 32 of the Wisconsin Statutes or that the Civic 
Center Building may be used for offices for City Departments.  Lessee further acknowledges that if 
either of these events occur, it may be necessary to terminate this Lease thereby requiring Lessee 
to relocate and find a replacement rental premises at another location.  Lessee further 
acknowledges, understands and agrees that Lessor would not be willing to lease the Leased 
Premises to Lessee at this time at the rental set forth in the Lease Agreement if Lessor became 
obligated at a later point in time to provide relocation assistance to Lessee as a result of a "public 
project" being undertaken in the Civic Center Building. Therefore, in order to induce Lessor to enter 
into this Lease Agreement, and in consideration of Lessor leasing the Leased Premises to Lessee 
as set forth in the Lease, and further acknowledging and understanding that Lessor relying on the 
enforceability of this section in entering into the Lease Agreement, Lessee hereby warrants and 
represents that Lessee has been informed and is knowledgeable about its potential rights to 
payments and services under the Wisconsin Relocation Law and under the Wisconsin Eminent 
Domain Law and Lessee understands its potential rights in the event the Civic Center Building is 
acquired or used for a "public project" and Lessee hereby knowingly, voluntarily and without any 
reservation whatsoever waives any rights to relocation benefits or assistance, including, but not 
limited to, moving expense, replacement rental premises, mortgage refinancing, expenses 

38 of 85



incidental to purchase of a replacement business premises, and any other relocation services or 
assistance whatsoever allowed by state or federal law, without limitation, during the term of this 
Lease Agreement, and any extensions or renewals therof, and so long as Lessee occupies any 
portion of the Leased Premises. 

 

21. Miscellaneous.  This Agreement and the attached exhibit, if any, contains the entire agreement 
between Lessor and Lessee concerning the Leased Premises and there are no other agreements, 
either written or oral.  Each provision hereof shall extend to and shall, as the case may require, 
bind and inure to the benefit of Lessor and Lessee and their respective successors and assigns.  
The captions in this Lease are inserted only as matters of convenience and for reference, and in 
no way define or limit the scope or intent of the various provisions, terms or conditions hereof.  The 
laws of the State of Wisconsin shall govern the validity and performance and enforcement of this 
Lease.  If any term, covenant or condition of this Lease shall, to any extent, be invalid or 
unenforceable, the remainder of this Lease shall not be affected and each term, covenant or 
condition of this Lease shall be valid and be enforced to the maximum extent permitted by law.  No 
modification of this Lease Agreement shall be binding on the parties unless executed in writing.  
Failure of Lessor to enforce any rights or remedies to which it may be entitled hereunder shall not 
constitute a waiver or estoppel thereof nor prevent the exercise or enforcement of any rights or 
remedies at any time thereafter with respect to either a preceding or subsequent breach of any 
terms, conditions, covenants or agreements contained in this Agreement.  All amounts to be paid 
by Lessee under this Lease (including rent) shall bear interest 10 days after the due date until paid 
at the rate of 18% per annum. 
 

22. Lessor’s Representation and Warranty.  Lessor represents and warrants to Lessee that Lessor and 
its owners, employees, agents and any subcontractors (collectively “Personnel”) are not: (i) listed 
on the System for Award Management website (“sam.gov”) (formerly known as the General 
Services Administration (“GSA”) Excluded Parties List System (“EPLS”)); or (ii) suspended or 
excluded from participation in any federal health care programs, as defined under 42.U.S.C. § 
1320a-7b(f), any form of state Medicaid program, and are not listed on the Office of the Inspector 
General’s website (“oig.hhs.gov”) (collectively, “Government Payor Programs”).  Lessor also 
represents and warrants that to the best of its knowledge there are no pending or threatened 
governmental investigations that may lead to suspension or exclusion of Lessor or Personnel from 
Government Payor Programs or may be cause for listing on sam.gov or oig.hhs.gov (collectively, 
an “Investigation”).  Lessor shall notify Lessee of the commencement of any Investigation or 
suspension or exclusion from Government Payor Programs within three (3) business days of 
Lessor’s first learning of it.  Lessee shall have the right to immediately terminate this Agreement 
upon learning of any such Investigation, suspension or exclusion.  Lessee shall be timely kept 
apprised by Lessor of the status of any such Investigation.  Lessor shall indemnify, defend, and 
hold Lessee harmless from any claims, liabilities, fines, and expenses (including reasonable 
attorneys’ fees) incurred as a result of Lessor’s breach of this paragraph. 

 

 
In witness whereof, the parties have executed this Lease effective as of the 1st day of January, 2023. 
 
 

 
LESSOR: City of Baraboo       By:________________________________ 
  Parks and Recreation Department   Mike Hardy, Director 
                     
 

            Date Signed:________________________ 
 
 
LESSEE: Stage III Theatre For Youth, Inc.  By:________________________________                

                                            Sue Kujawa, Director 
   
                                                                Date Signed;________________________ 

 

39 of 85



NBR - 5

RESOLUTION NO. 2022 - Dated: September 27, 2022

The City of Baraboo, Wisconsin

Background: This resolution seeks the approval of entering into a 6 month lease with the Baraboo
Thunderbird Youth Hockey Association for the rental of the Pierce Park Pavilion at the rate of $250.00 per
month ($1,500/6 month term). The lease rate reflects a discount due to past contributions by the Association
in the construction of the facility as well as serving area youth in hockey programming.
The lease was recommended unanimously by the Parks Commission at their August 8, 2022 regular meeting.
Fiscal Note: [ ] Not Required [ x ] Budgeted Expenditure [ ] Not Budgeted
Comments: The recommended lease rate was used to develop the 2023 budget.

Resolved, by the Common Council of the City of Baraboo, Sauk County, Wisconsin:

THAT the Baraboo Thunderbird Youth Hockey Association lease for space at the Pierce Park
Pavilion beginning October 15, 2022 and ending April 14, 2023 be approved and that the lease rate be
paid at $250.00 per month.

Offered by: Parks Commission Approved:
Motion:
Second: Attest:

40 of 85



S:\Parks\Administration\Leases & Concessions\Lease - BYHA 2022-23.docx 

LEASE AGREEMENT 
 

Lessee:  Thunderbird Youth Hockey Association 
Lessor:  City of Baraboo, Wisconsin. 
Leased Premises: Pierce Park Multi-Purpose Pavilion. 
 
 This Lease is entered into as of the 15th day of October, 2022, by and between the Thunderbird 
Youth Hockey Association (Lessee), a Wisconsin non-profit corporation, and the City of Baraboo (Lessor), 
a Wisconsin municipal corporation with a mailing address of 101 South Boulevard, Baraboo, WI 53913. 
 

WITNESSETH 
 

 WHEREAS, Lessee desires to lease the Pierce Park Multi-Purpose Pavilion on a 6-month basis, from October 
15, 2022 through April 14, 2023, for the purpose of conducting a youth ice hockey program; and  
 

WHEREAS, Lessor is willing and desirous of leasing the Pierce Park Multi-Purpose Pavilion to Lessee upon 
the terms and conditions hereinafter set forth; and 
 

 WHEREAS, the rights granted to the Lessee by this land use agreement are and shall remain subordinate to 
the obligations of the Lessor and the rights granted the Department of the Interior, National Park Service under the 
Land and Water Conservation Fund Act of 1965 dedicating the facilities in this agreement for public recreation 
purposes; and 
 

 WHEREAS, Lessee has made, at Lessee’s cost and expense, the improvements to The Leased Premises 
described on Exhibit A, attached hereto. 
 

 NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the improvements made to The Leased Premises by Lessee and 
in consideration of the mutual covenants and agreements hereinafter set forth, Lessor hereby leases and rents to Lessee 
and Lessee does hereby lease and rent from Lessor the Leased Premises, all as hereinafter set forth. 
 

1. TERM OF LEASE.  Lessor hereby leases to Lessee the Leased Premises for the period from October 15, 
2022, to April 14, 2023.   

 

2. LIMITATION ON TERM OF LEASE.  During the Lease Term, Lessor reserves the use of the skating rink, 
restrooms, and warming area for recreational skating for the general public as provided in Section 4 hereof. 

 

3. RENTS, UTILITIES, REPAIRS, AND MAINTENANCE. Lessee shall pay and annual rate of $1,500 
($250/month during the 6-month term) to Lessor for the use of the Leased Premises. Lessee shall provide 
and pay for all utilities on The Leased Premises, including electricity, water, heating, fuel, and telephone and 
other communication services used in connection with the Leased Premises during the Leased Term. Lessee 
shall see to it that sufficient heat is provided in the enclosed service portion and restrooms of the Pavilion to 
prevent damage to plumbing and fixtures. Lessee shall be responsible for the normal and routine repairs and 
maintenance for all equipment, fixtures, and mechanical systems owned by Lessee and for any damages 
caused by the failure or removal of the equipment, fixtures, or mechanical systems owned by Lessee.   Lessor 
shall be responsible for the repair and maintenance of equipment, fixtures, and mechanical systems owned 
by Lessor and for any damages caused by the failure of any equipment, fixtures, or mechanical systems owned 
by Lessor.  Lessee shall immediately notify Lessor of any need for repair and/or maintenance to The Leased 
Premises. 

 

4. USE OF LEASED PREMISES. Lessee shall use The Leased Premises exclusively for ice hockey, ice skating, 
operation of a concession food and beverage stand, and conducting other recreation-related activities related 
to the purpose of promoting and encouraging people of all ages to participate in ice skating and other 
recreational activities.  Lessor reserves the use of the ice skating rink, restrooms, and warming areas for 
recreational skating time for the general public a minimum of three (3) hours per week (Sunday 
afternoons/evenings) as well as allowing for Free Admission skating the first Sunday in February for 
Winterfest Activities from 6-8pm.  In addition to the required minimum 3 hours of public skating per week, 
Lessee will also provide public recreational skating on four (4) Baraboo School District winter holiday break 

41 of 85



 

S:\Parks\Administration\Leases & Concessions\Lease - BYHA 2022-23.docx 

2 
days from noon-3 pm.  The times and days for supervised recreational skating for the public shall be 
approved by the City of Baraboo Parks and Recreation Department and shall be publicly displayed by the 
Lessee at The Leased Premises. It is agreed by the parties that the City shall have sole and exclusive use of 
the Leased Premises during the designated public skating times.  Lessor shall make the facility available for 
rent by community groups for public recreation activities during the months when ice is not maintained. 
These activities must be approved by lessor in advance to assure accessibility by the public. 

 

5. OPERATIONAL RESPONSIBILITIES AND DUTIES OF LESSEE. Lessee covenants and agrees to 
perform the following in a careful, efficient, and businesslike manner: 

 

A. Lessee shall have full authority over the scheduling of ice time and building use during The Lease 
Term, subject to weather conditions and satisfactory ice surface conditions provided that Lessee’s 
ice rink managers shall be granted reasonable discretion to determine whether ice conditions are 
satisfactory. Lessee agrees that Lessee shall provide volunteers to the City during the public skating 
hours as set forth in Section 4, all at no charge to the City and said volunteers provided by Lessee 
shall be city volunteers who shall be responsible for supervising and monitoring the public skating 
programs. Lessee shall further be responsible for, and provide and pay for, all utilities used during 
the public skating time reserved herein by the City. No organized team sport activity shall be 
undertaken during the public skating times. Persons designated as City volunteers for the public ice 
time shall first be approved by the Parks and Recreation Department and shall conduct themselves 
at all times in a safe, sober, and courteous manner while acting as City volunteers. Lessee agrees to 
take immediate corrective action upon receiving notice from the Lessor that Lessor has received a 
legitimate complaint regarding the conduct of any person assigned as a City volunteer during the 
public ice skating time described herein. 

 

B. In order to reimburse Lessee for the overhead costs incurred by Lessee during the public skating use 
reserved by the City, Lessee may charge a fee for ice time use for recreational public skating,  private 
skating parties and/or organized groups. The fee shall not exceed the reasonable overhead costs 
allocated to the public ice time and any such fee shall first be reviewed and approved by the Baraboo 
Parks and Recreation Department. 

 

C. Lessee may use The Leased Premises for the operation of a concession stand for the sale of food, 
beverages, and other merchandise. 

 

D. The parties acknowledge that from a practical and economical standpoint it is impossible for the 
Lessee or Lessor to monitor the use of the ice on The Leased Premises during times when the 
Pavilion is closed and unsupervised. Therefore, Lessee shall not be obligated to establish any 
procedures designed to prevent persons from using the Pavilion ice and/or undertaking recreational 
activities on The Leased Premises during unsupervised times when the facilities are closed. 

 

E. Lessee shall be responsible for all physical operations of The Leased Premises and its programs 
during The Lease Term, including, but not limited to, setup and takedown of hockey boards, ice 
making, resurfacing and maintenance, cleaning of Pavilion, service building, concession stand, 
restrooms, and all areas surrounding the Pavilion, including the parking areas and walkway areas 
except for snow removal which shall be performed by Lessor as provided in Section 17. 

 

F. Except as expressly provided herein, Lessee shall not make any alterations to or improvements on 
The Leased Premises without the prior written consent of Lessor and any and all such alterations or 
improvements made by Lessee shall become the absolute property of Lessor at the end of The Lease 
Term. Lessee shall be authorized to install and operate an ice rink refrigeration system and a forced 
air furnace heating system on The Leased Premises in accordance with standards and specifications 
approved by Lessor. Lessee shall further retain ownership of the items of property described on 
Exhibit B, attached hereto, and Lessee may remove said items from The Leased Premises at the end 
of The Lease Term provided, however, that all such removals of property shall be undertaken and 
completed in a manner so as to restore The Leased Premises to its original condition, ordinary wear 
and tear excepted, and any damages resulting from the removal of fixtures shall be satisfactorily 
repaired. 

42 of 85



 

S:\Parks\Administration\Leases & Concessions\Lease - BYHA 2022-23.docx 

3 
G. Lessee shall, at its expense, maintain The Leased Premises in as good order and repair as the same 

were at the beginning of The Lease Term, reasonable wear and tear accepted; provided, however, 
Lessor shall be responsible for all structural repairs. 

 

H. Except to the extent expressly authorized in writing by Lessor, Lessee shall not create or permit to 
be created any lien, encumbrance, security interest, or other charge, including liens for work, labor 
or materials done or furnished or alleged to have been done or furnished on The Leased Premises. 

 

I. Lessee agrees that any and all expenses incurred by Lessee in the conducting of its operations at The 
Leased Premises shall be paid on or before the due date thereof.  

 

6. USE OF LESSEE REVENUES.  If Lessee is not in default of this Lease or of the terms of the attached 
agreement, Lessee shall be entitled to retain full ownership and control of all revenues generated by Lessee 
pursuant to its activities on The Leased Premises during The Lease Term.  Lessee agrees that the revenues 
shall only be used as set forth in the Agreement between Lessor and Lessee dated July 25, 1996, which 
Agreement is incorporated by reference and is on file in the City Clerk’s office.   

 

7. INSURANCE AND INDEMNIFICATION.  Lessor agrees to maintain fire and extended insurance 
coverage on the Pierce Park Multi-Purpose Pavilion and on the personal property on The Leased 
Premises owned by Lessor. Lessee shall be responsible for providing insurance coverage for any personal 
property and fixtures on The Leased Premises belonging to Lessee. The insurance need not apply during 
public skating times designated under Section 5A. 

 

A. Insurance Requirements - General Liability coverage from an insurance company with an A.M. 
Best ranking of at least A- with said coverage at least as broad as Insurance Services Office 
Commercial General Liability Form, including coverage for fire, personal property and fixtures 
with the following minimum limits and coverage: 
i. Each Occurrence – minimum of $1,000,000 
ii. Personal Injury – minimum of $1,000,000 
iii. General Aggregate – minimum of $2,000,000 
iv. Fire Damage limit — any one fire minimum of $50,000 
v. Medical Expense limit — any one person minimum of $5,000 
vi. Workers’ Compensation as required by the State of Wisconsin, and Employers Liability 

insurance with sufficient limits to meet underlying Umbrella Liability insurance 
requirements. 

 

B. It is hereby agreed and understood that the insurance required by the Lessor is primary 
coverage and that any insurance or self-insurance maintained by the Lessor, its officers, council 
members, agents, employees or authorized volunteers will not contribute to a loss.  

 

C. All insurance shall be in full force prior to commencing the Lease and remain in force until the 
Lease terminates or expires 

 
 

D. This coverage and the certificate of insurance shall name as additional insureds, the City of 
Baraboo, its officers, directors, commissions, boards, employees, volunteers, and agents. 

 

E. In addition, Lessee further agrees to procure and maintain the liability insurance coverage 
provided by USA Hockey, Inc. A certificate of insurance verifying Lessee's insurance coverage 
as set forth above shall be delivered to Lessor together with proof of payment of the premium 
therefore and such certificate shall evidence the obligation of the insurer not to cancel or 
materially amend the policy without thirty (30) calendar days prior notice to Lessor. 

 

F. Except during public skating times designated under Section 5A, Lessee further acknowledges 
and agrees that liability for bodily injury, disability, and/or death of its agents, volunteers, 
employees, invitees, guests, or any other person, or for damage to property, caused, in any  way, 
directly or indirectly by the operations of Lessee, its agents, employees or volunteers, upon The 
Leased Premises or pursuant to Lessee carrying out its operations on The Leased Premises shall 

43 of 85



 

S:\Parks\Administration\Leases & Concessions\Lease - BYHA 2022-23.docx 

4 
be assumed by Lessee and Lessee shall indemnify and hold Lessor harmless from all claims, 
judgments, actions, proceedings, damages and liabilities, including reasonable attorneys fees, 
including any acts or omissions by Lessor, its employees, agents, representatives, and volunteers 
whatsoever. The provisions of this section shall only apply during The Lease Term. 

 
G. INDEMNIFICATION.  Lessee shall indemnify, defend, and hold the Lessor, and the Lessor’s 

employees, agents, council members, officers and volunteers harmless from and against any and 
all claims, actions, suits, demands, assessments, or judgments asserted, and any and all losses, 
liabilities, damages, costs, and expenses (including, without limitation, attorney’s fees, accounting 
fees, and investigation costs to the extent permitted by law) alleged or incurred arising out of or 
relating to any operations, acts, or omissions of the indemnifying party or any of its officers, 
employees, agents, authorized volunteers and invitees in the exercise of the indemnifying party's 
rights or the performance or observance of the indemnifying party's obligations under this Lease. 
Prompt notice must be given of any claim, and the City will have control of any defense or 
settlement. 

 

8. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR STATUS OF LESSEE.  Lessee acknowledges and agrees that it is an 
independent contractor of Lessor and that its business is independently owned and operated and that nothing 
in this Lease shall be interpreted to cause or result in, directly or indirectly, a principal/agent or employer/ 
employee relationship between Lessee and Lessor and nothing in this Lease shall in any way be construed as 
an agreement of partnership, general or limited, joint venture or as any agency relationship whatsoever 
between Lessor and Lessee. Lessee agrees not to represent or advertise in any way that its relationship with 
the Lessor other than as provided in this section. 

 

9. NON-DISCRIMINATION.  Lessee agrees to conduct its operations at The Leased Premises in a manner so 
as not to discriminate against any person because of age, race, creed, color, handicap, marital status, sex, 
national origin and ancestry, arrest record or conviction record, or any other form of discrimination 
specifically prohibited by applicable State or Federal Laws. Lessee shall indemnify, defend, and hold harmless 
Lessor, and the City of Baraboo, from claims, actions, proceedings, damages, and liabilities arising out of 
alleged discriminatory acts or omissions by Lessee in connection with the activities conducted by Lessee on 
The Leased Premises. 

 
10. LAWFUL USE.  Lessee agrees to abide by all applicable ordinances, zoning codes, regulations and statutes 

as it pertains to their use of The Leased Premises for the duration of the Lease Term. 
 

11. RIGHT TO PLACE SIGNS.  Lessee shall have the privilege of placing on The Leased Premises signs thereon 
provided, however, that Lessor shall have the right to approve the size and shape of the signs and provided 
that the signs are neatly and professionally prepared. 

 

12. SUB-LETTING OR ASSIGNMENT.  This Lease may not be assigned by Lessee either in whole or in part, 
and during The Lease Term no portion of The Leased Premises may be subleased or otherwise occupied by 
any party other than the employees, agents, or volunteers of the Lessee for the purpose of undertaking the 
activities to be performed by Lessee under this agreement, except as specifically set forth herein. Lessee may 
assign this Lease to the Baraboo National Bank for collateral purposes. It is expressly understood that Lessee 
may allow ice time for private skating groups and parties to be conducted at specific dates and times, provided, 
however, Lessee shall not be relieved of any liabilities under this Lease as a result of any such use of The 
Leased Premises. 

 

13. REMOVAL OF TENANT'S PROPERTY UPON TERMINATION.  Lessee, upon termination of this 
Lease, may remove any and all inventory and other property located upon The Leased Premises and listed on 
Exhibit B, attached hereto. All fixtures installed by Lessee on The Leased Premises and not described on 
Exhibit B shall become the absolute property of Lessor upon installation. Lessee agrees that all fixtures shall 
be installed in a good and workmanlike manner. Lessee agrees that Lessee shall deliver up possession of The 
Leased Premises quietly and peaceably at the expiration of this Lease, in good condition and repair ordinary 
wear and tear excepted. 

 

44 of 85



 

S:\Parks\Administration\Leases & Concessions\Lease - BYHA 2022-23.docx 

5 
14. COMPLIANCE WITH APPLICABLE LAWS AND REGULATIONS.  Lessee agrees to promptly 

observe, obey, and comply with all rules, laws, regulations, ordinances, directives, orders, and requirements 
of the State of Wisconsin, Sauk County, City of Baraboo and Park and Recreation Commission, and the like 
concerning The Leased Premises or appurtenances thereto or connected with the enjoyment thereof; and to 
observe such rules and regulations as may be required by the insurance companies or underwriters that may 
insure The Leased Premises or appurtenance thereto. Al l employees, agents and volunteers of Lessee shall 
conduct themselves in a safe, sober and courteous manner while performing services at The Leased Premises. 
Lessee agrees to take immediate corrective action upon receiving notice from Lessor that Lessor has received 
a legitimate complaint regarding the conduct of an employee, agent, or volunteer of Lessee while said person 
was performing services for Lessee at The Leased Premises. 

 
14. LIMITATION ON TENANCY.  Lessee agrees that the tenancy granted herein is subject to the following 

limitations and rights of Lessor: 
 

A. Subject to weather conditions and satisfactory ice surface conditions, Lessor shall have the use of the 
ice for conducting ice skating programs as provided in Section 4, provided, however, that the 
scheduling of such activities by Lessor shall not interfere with Lessee's use of The Leased Premises 
for ice hockey purposes. 

 

B. Lessor shall have the right to use the parking areas for City activities. 
 

C. Lessee agrees that Lessor shall have the right to enter upon and within The Leased Premises by its 
agents or employees at any time for the purpose of making routine inspections, or for such other 
purpose as Lessor deems necessary. Lessee shall not change any of the locks to the doors on The 
Leased Premises without the prior consent of Lessor. 

 

D. The rights granted to the Lessee by this agreement are and shall remain subordinate to the obligations 
of the Lessor and the rights granted the Department of the Interior, National Park Service (NPS) 
under the Land and Water Conservation Fund Act of 1965 dedicating the land described in paragraph 
1 of this agreement for public outdoor recreation purposes. 

 

15. DEFAULT BY LESSEE.  If Lessee defaults in the performance of any of the terms and conditions of this 
Lease, then this Lease may be declared forfeited by Lessee at the option of Lessor. Lessor may thereafter 
reenter without notice or demand. Any forfeiture or re-entry under this section shall permit Lessor to re-let 
the premises after taking possession thereof. 

 

Lessee agrees that the following shall constitute acts of default of this Lease on the part of Lessee: 
  

A. Unless excused by Lessor, the failure of Lessee to provide sufficient City volunteers for the public 
ice time at the scheduled times and in the manner prescribed by Section 5A hereof. Lessee shall be 
given one written warning of a violation of this subsection and a violation thereafter, during the same 
Lease Term, shall be a default of this Lease and grounds for termination hereof. 
 

B. The non-performance of any other term, covenant, or condition of this Lease not covered under 
subsection above which is not cured within seven days after notice thereof from Lessor. If the default 
or action complained of is of such a nature that it cannot be completely cured within such seven-day 
period, such default shall not be enforceable against Lessee if Lessee shall have begun curing it within 
the seven-day period and shall, with reasonable diligence and in good faith, proceed to remedy it. 

 

C. If Lessee voluntarily or involuntarily abandons, deserts, vacates, or discontinues the operations and 
obligations required of Lessee under this Lease, or if Lessee becomes the subject of bankruptcy or 
insolvency proceedings, whether voluntary or involuntary. 
 

D. If Lessee shall default in the payment of any obligations owed by Lessee to the Baraboo National 
Bank, or any other creditor, or if Lessee otherwise defaults or neglects, fails or refuses to perform 
any other term, covenant, or condition set forth in any promissory note, loan agreement, or other 
written obligation in which default is not cured within seven (7) calendar days after notice thereof 
from Lessor. 

45 of 85



 

S:\Parks\Administration\Leases & Concessions\Lease - BYHA 2022-23.docx 

6 
16. MANNER OF GIVING NOTICE.  Any notice by either party to the other pursuant to the provisions of 

this Lease or any law shall be given by personal delivery or by regular first class mail, postage prepaid, 
addressed to the parties for whom it is intended at the address shown in this Lease, or at such other address 
as such party may have designated in writing. 

 

17. LESSOR'S SNOW REMOVAL RESPONSIBILITIES.  Lessor shall provide snow removal from all parking 
and walkway areas of The Leased Premises, provided, however, Lessor shall not be obligated to remove snow 
from said areas until snow removal activities on public streets, parks and trails have been completed. Lessor 
will not be obligated to remove snow from parking areas and walkways if this will require Lessor to incur 
overtime pay obligations to its employees. Lessee agrees to notify the City when a snowfall occurs prior to or 
during a scheduled tournament in order to enable Lessor to attempt to provide reasonable snow removal 
services for the tournament. 

 

18. ARBITRATION OF DISPUTES.  Any disputes under this Lease shall be decided by binding arbitration 
pursuant to Section 802.12, Wis. Stats., as amended. Either Lessee or Lessor shall have the right to apply to 
the Sauk County Circuit Court for an order appointing a neutral third person to render a decision that is 
legally binding upon the parties. The binding arbitration shall be conducted pursuant to the dispute resolution 
process set forth in Section 802.12(1)(a), Wis. Stats., as amended. The cost of the arbitrator and the expenses 
of arbitration shall be shared equally by the parties. The arbitration shall take place in Sauk County and the 
Wisconsin Rules of Evidence shall be used. The arbitrator shall not be entitled to award punitive damages 
against either party. 

 
19. AMENDMENTS.  This Lease may be modified or amended at any time by a writing duly authorized and 

executed by both Lessor and Lessee. It may not be amended or modified by oral agreements or understanding 
between the parties, or their agents, unless the same shall be reduced to writing duly authorized and executed 
by both Lessor and Lessee. 

  
20. MISCELLANEOUS.  Lessee acknowledges and agrees that the management and administration of the Pierce 

Park Complex, including the Pierce Park Multi-Purpose Pavilion, is wholly and exclusively under the 
jurisdiction of Lessor, or its authorized representatives, and Lessee shall at all times undertake its activities 
pursuant to this Lease in a way and manner so as not to interfere with any governmental services performed 
by Lessor, or the City of Baraboo, its employees, agents, and representatives. Lessor and Lessee acknowledge 
and agree that each party shall have the right at all times to enforce the provisions of this Lease in strict 
accordance with the terms hereof, notwithstanding any conduct or custom on the part of either party in 
refraining from doing so at any time or times to enforce its rights under the provisions of this Lease strictly 
in accordance with the same shall not be construed as having created a custom in any way or manner contrary 
to the specific provisions of this Lease or as having in any way or manner modified or waived the same. The 
headings used herein are for convenience and shall not be resorted to for purposes of interpretation or 
construction hereof. No waiver of any breach or breaches of any provisions of this Lease shall be construed 
to be a waiver of any preceding or succeeding breach of such provision, or any other provision hereof. 
 

In witness whereof, the parties have executed this Lease on the 15th day of October, 2022. 
 
 

LESSOR:  City of Baraboo     By:__________________________  
Parks & Recreation Department    Mike Hardy, Director  

 

Date Signed:__________________   
 

LESSEE:  Thunderbird Youth Hockey Association By:__________________________  
Greg Sarnow, President 

 

Date Signed:__________________ 
 

 
 

46 of 85



 

S:\Parks\Administration\Leases & Concessions\Lease - BYHA 2022-23.docx 

7 

 
EXHIBIT  A 

 
Improvements Completed by Lessee per Agreement dated July 25, 1996 

 
 
 

Lessee shall install a permanent ice rink concrete floor and refrigeration system. The floor shall be 
paved in concrete for use year-round for a variety of functions. 
 

The concrete floor shall be underlain by the subsoil frost prevention piping system. Rink floor 
insulation shall be installed and a 6-inch concrete slab containing steel re-bar and a rink refrigeration system. 
The entire pavilion shall be provided with a concrete floor although the refrigeration system will only be 
installed in the rink area. 
 

The compressor room in the pavilion shall also be furnished with a concrete floor once the 
refrigeration system piping is in place. The compressor room will house one factory assembled, multiple 
compressor, liquid chiller system including all electrical control panels for operation. 
 

The standards and specifications for all the above shall be in accordance with plans and specifications 
prepared by Mid-State Associates, dated June 1996 as Project No. 999016. SPC, which plans and 
specifications are incorporated in this Lease by reference.  
 

47 of 85



 

S:\Parks\Administration\Leases & Concessions\Lease - BYHA 2022-23.docx 

8 
 

EXHIBIT  B 
 

Property  Owned  By  Lessee 
 
 
 
1. Compressors and electrical components for ice refrigeration. 
 
2. Bryant - Plus 90 Furnace. (This furnace is not hooked up and is a back up. The furnace that is 

hooked up is owned by Lessor.) 
 
3. Scoreboards. 
 
4. Display cases. 
 
5. Refrigerated display case. 
 
6. Warming table. 
 
7. Refrigerator. 
 
8. Freezer. 
 
9. Griddle. 
 
10. Deep fryer. 
 
11. Dishwasher. 
 
12. Beverage dispensers. 
 
13. Any other miscellaneous items of personal property, which are not fixtures or which are not 

attached or affixed to The Leased Premises, and which are purchased solely with Lessee's 
funds. 

 
 
 
Items Added: 
 
14. Hockey Boards and glass associated with Hockey Boards. 
 
15. Scorers Box, Penalty Boxes, Players Boxes, and all materials located within. 
 
16. Boilers associated with the in-floor hot water heat. 

 
17. Bleachers. 
 
 
 
 
 

48 of 85



To:  Finance Committee & City Council  
From: Mike Hardy, Parks, Recreation & Forestry Director 
Date:   September 27, 2022 
Re:  Thunderbird Youth Hockey Pavilion Lease 

 
The Thunderbird Youth Hockey Association (formerly Baraboo Youth Hockey Association) 
partnered with the City of Baraboo to construct the Pierce Park Pavilion in 1996.  The City 
received a Stewardship grant from the State of Wisconsin for $75,000 to construct an open air 
ice hockey rink.  The Association asked the City to instead enclose the rink, which added cost to 
the construction, as well as future utility and maintenance costs that we continue to pay for 
today.  The Association paid $506,820 and the City paid $146,000 to construct the building. 
 
Over the next 25 years, the City agreed to waive any rental fees for the use of the Pavilion for 
the Association to conduct a 6-month youth hockey program.  The agreement stated that the 
Association would pay for utility costs during their 6-month winter season, and City would pay 
for summer utility costs, as well as yearly insurance and maintenance costs. 
 
The Stewardship grant requirements permitted the lease as long as at least 50% of the time it 
was available to the general public, which is why the summer months it remains open for public 
rentals and we require the Association to make public skating times available every week on 
Sundays during their lease as well as during Christmas break and Winterfest. 
 
The City continues to pay for utilities in the summer, averaging $5,000 per year.  However, due 
to the lack of proper HVAC/ventilation, the Pavilion does not receive rental demand over the 
summer months and any programming we have tried has not been received well due to extreme 
heat and humidity in the building, so revenues have been lacking to pay for expenses over the 
summer months. 
 
Even though the building goes mostly unused in the summer, due to the high use of utilities by 
the Association in the winter, the utility base rates are elevated and City pays additional costs 
due to the Association’s high utility demand.  This has created approximately $5,000 in City 
costs to support the Association’s use of the Pavilion.  (Not including the City cost to insure and 
maintain the building annually).  Additionally, past Association reports noted that City residents 
make up less than 40% of the Association membership (meaning that City taxpayers are paying 
the costs to provide recreational space for a program in which over 60% of participants are non-
residents/non-taxpayers.) 
 
To address the need to more equitably charge fees to Non-City residents for the use of City 
facilities, as well as help fill the $112,000 budget cuts mandated in 2023, Department staff 
proposed charging $3,000 rent ($500/month) for future Hockey Club leases.  The Parks 
Commission agreed that the Association should be contributing to rising costs like other groups 
do, but noted the high cost of hockey participation and 1996 contributions of $506,820 to help 
build the building, and unanimously voted to charge $250/month ($1,500/6 month term) for the 
2022-23 lease. 
 
The Commission lease recommendation was made at their August 8, 2022 meeting.  If 
approved the rate will be applied to the 2022-23 lease which begins October 15, 2022. 

49 of 85



City of Baraboo Treasurer's Report Investment 2022 9/12/2022Month August 2022

Bank Balance Bank

BANK INVESTMENTS Type Fund Account Term Maturity Rate BSB LGIP CFB SUM BWD PDS PVL CLARE WCCU NIC CCF BMO FICA SCHWAB Grand Total

Alma Waite Account NOW account 820 104502957 Daily 0.25% 103,785.32 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 103,785.32

Alma Waite Trust Fund Cert of Deposit 820 1807416 30 months 7/25/23 0.45%* 0.00 0.00 201,349.32 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 201,349.32

3880111 18 months 4/21/23 0.40% 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 100,000.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 100,000.00

7758002185 12 months 4/6/23 1.00% 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 100,000.00 0.00 0.00 100,000.00

Investment Pool 820 856206-3 Daily 2.15% 0.00 38,919.35 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 38,919.35

Deposit Placement 820 10090686 Daily 0.85% 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 161,593.33 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 161,593.33

Dana Investment 820 3694-7092 (blank) 1.03% 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 500,000.00 500,000.00

CDA-Grant Accounts Checking 220 1000934/1146394 Daily none 10.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 10.00

CDA-Loan Accounts (blank) 983 (blank) (blank) (blank) 477,225.96 171,091.05 206,265.14 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 854,582.15

Fire Benefit Fund Investment 900 126696102 Daily 0.04% 0.00 0.00 0.00 651.02 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 651.02

Cert of Deposit 900 54962-100 12 months 5/9/23 0.60% 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 50,000.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 50,000.00

Investment Pool 900 856206-4 Daily 2.15% 0.00 18,967.10 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 18,967.10

Fire Equipment Fund Cert of Deposit 420 1807422 30 months 7/25/23 0.45%* 0.00 0.00 201,349.32 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 201,349.32

54962-113 12 months 3/25/23 0.60% 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 200,800.81 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 200,800.81

1807950 30 months 9/29/23 0.30%* 0.00 0.00 161,959.46 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 161,959.46

7758002186 12 months 4/6/23 1.00% 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 100,000.00 0.00 0.00 100,000.00

60000014 12 months 5/31/23 1.00% 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 180,000.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 180,000.00

Deposit Placement 420 10090686 Daily 0.85% 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 280,243.88 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 280,243.88

Dana Investment 420 3694-7092 (blank) 1.03% 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 400,000.00 400,000.00

Friends of the Library Savings 940 103035891 Daily 0.15% 32,504.97 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 32,504.97

General Cash Account Checking / NOW 100 1000306/9830 Daily .10%/.25% 818,052.23 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 818,052.23

Deposit Placement 100 101066015 Daily 0.25% 719,529.78 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 719,529.78

General Fund Money Market 100 86190136 Daily 0.60% 0.00 0.00 1,016,427.06 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 1,016,427.06

163563 Daily 0.48% 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 337,174.25 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 337,174.25

471582 Daily 0.65% 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 292,272.89 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 292,272.89

10080968 Daily 1.00% 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 640,543.56 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 640,543.56

525450 Daily 0.40% 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 387,369.21 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 387,369.21

54962-07 Daily 1.00% 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 634,301.04 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 634,301.04

5031443 Daily 0.72% 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 284,843.40 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 284,843.40

20032292 Daily 1.47% 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 250,964.74 0.00 0.00 0.00 250,964.74

2061232 Daily 1.00% 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 141,554.81 0.00 0.00 141,554.81

Cert of Deposit 100 7758002184 12 months 4/6/23 1.00% 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 100,000.00 0.00 0.00 100,000.00

3882053 25 months 7/27/24 2.00% 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 200,000.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 200,000.00

Investment Pool 100 856206-1 Daily 2.15% 0.00 1,769,926.22 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 1,769,926.22

Deposit Placement 100 104791111271 Daily 1.93% 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 1,773,325.54 0.00 1,773,325.54

10090686 Daily 1.00% 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 1,173,704.24 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 1,173,704.24

Dana Investment 100 3694-7092 (blank) 1.03% 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 1,200,000.00 1,200,000.00

General Fund-Bond Issue Money Market 100 104557859 Daily 1.47% 433,147.05 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 433,147.05

Investment Pool 100 856206-2 Daily 2.15% 0.00 1,464,049.67 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 1,464,049.67

Deposit Placement 100 10090686 Daily 1.00% 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 1,320,000.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 1,320,000.00

Library Segregated Fund NOW account 850 104551192 Daily 0.25% 100,766.73 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 100,766.73

Park House Account NOW account 890 101001035 Daily 0.25% 7,349.67 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 7,349.67

Park Kuenzi Estate Cert of Deposit 830 54962-114 18 months 2/6/23 0.45% 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 11,725.95 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 11,725.95

3882045 25 months 7/27/24 2.00% 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 10,000.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 10,000.00

Park Segregated Fund NOW account 840/870 1000-888 Daily 0.25% 107,318.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 107,318.00

Sewer Debt Service NOW account 960 104506359 Daily 0.25% 113,652.27 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 113,652.27

Sewer Depreciation Fund Cert of Deposit 960 1808559 12 Months 9/9/22 0.25% 0.00 0.00 205,643.69 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 205,643.69

Sewer Equipment Replacement FundCert of Deposit 960 54962-0115 12 Months 9/8/22 0.40% 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 248,923.89 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 248,923.89

60000011 12 month 5/26/23 1.00% 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 171,294.90 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 171,294.90

NOW account 960 104522281 Daily 0.25% 188,984.30 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 188,984.30

Dana Investment 960 3694-7092 (blank) 1.03% 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 400,000.00 400,000.00

Sewer General Cert of Deposit 960 54962-110 12 months 09/02/22 0.40% 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 176,580.32 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 176,580.32

7758002188 12 months 4/6/23 1.00% 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 100,000.00 0.00 0.00 100,000.00

Investment Pool 960 856206-7 Daily 2.15% 0.00 625,730.82 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 625,730.82

NOW account 960 104550099 Daily 0.25% 492,822.44 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 492,822.44

Dana Investment 960 3694-7092 (blank) 1.03% 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 300,000.00 300,000.00

Stormwater Dana Investment 950 3694-7092 (blank) 1.03% 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 150,000.00 150,000.00

Stormwater Equip ReplacementMoney Market 950 104565819 Daily 0.25% 180,221.01 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 180,221.01

Utilities Account Checking 960/970 101000292 Daily 0.10% 507,220.38 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 507,220.38

Utilities Money Market Money Market 960 14890100-0070 Daily 1.75% 0.00 0.00 0.00 231,129.88 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 231,129.88

960/970 525990 Daily 0.40% 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 257,305.36 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 257,305.36

970 14890100-0070 Daily 1.75% 0.00 0.00 0.00 45,521.90 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 45,521.90

Water General Money Market 970 101153201 Daily 0.25% 490,622.55 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 490,622.55

Cert of Deposit 970 54962-0116 12 months 09/08/22 0.40% 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 321,930.13 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 321,930.13

7758002187 12 months 4/6/23 1.00% 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 100,000.00 0.00 0.00 100,000.00

1809504 9 months 2/26/23 0.90% 0.00 0.00 170,000.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 170,000.00

Investment Pool 970 856206-8 Daily 2.15% 0.00 578,830.15 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 578,830.15

Dana Investment 970 3694-7092 (blank) 1.03% 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 650,000.00 650,000.00

Grand Total 4,773,212.66 4,667,514.36 2,162,993.99 277,302.80 647,174.25 643,567.79 3,576,085.01 644,674.57 1,644,262.14 284,843.40 250,964.74 641,554.81 1,773,325.54 3,600,000.00 25,587,476.06

18.65% 18.24% 8.45% 1.08% 2.53% 2.52% 13.98% 2.52% 6.43% 1.11% 0.98% 2.51% 6.93% 14.07% Actual

Bank Rating ***** ***** ***** ***** ***** ***** **** ***** ***** ***** ****
FDIC / State Insured 1,846,755.74 Unlimited 856,265.14 650,000.00 650,000.00 650,000.00 Unlimited 650,000.00 650,000.00 650,000.00 650,000.00 650,000.00 Unlimited Unlimited 17,159,063$

Collateral 6,005,689.00 1,338,437.00 1,000,000.00 575,681.00 4,828,413$

Brokerage Securites 3,600,000$

Maximum Investment 7,852,444.74 2,194,702.14 1,650,000.00 1,225,681.00 25,587,476$

Lori J Laux, Treasurer

50 of 85



TREASURER'S INVESTMENT TRANSACTION REPORT Aug-22

Average Rate of Return on Current Deposits: Benchmarks:
Avg Term

General Funds: 4.7 M 1.46% LGIP 2.15%
Total Receipts: 3,179,243.53 Utility Funds: 11.4 M 0.96%

Segregated Funds: 24.5 M 0.86% 90-day T-bill: 2.94%

Total Disbursments: 2,575,353.27 Securities w/Dana 4.48 years 1.35%

All Funds: 9.9 M 1.27% 6M CD: 0.88%
*** BANK RATINGS were REVIEWED Liquid: 74% 12M CD: 1.37%

Term: 26% 18M CD: 1.77%
Policy Objectives:

Safety: ▪ $3,600,000 has been invested in marketable securities with Dana Investments, these are not guaranteed.

Liquidity: ▪ Liquidity remains high as short term rates remain the strongest
Yield: ▪ Interest rates have been in flux with the quick, high increases in the federal interest rate

Bank ratings: ▪ Clare Bank and BMO Harris dropped one star, all others are at 5 stars

TRANSACTIONS

# Action Type Identification Bank Acct # Note Term Maturity DateRate Amount Interest

(1) NONE

INVESTMENT ADVISOR TRANSACTIONS
Yield to Worst

# Action Type Identification Price Rating Note Term/WAL Maturity DateYield - Maturity Amount Interest

(1) NONE

51 of 85



Finance/Personnel Committee–Dennis Thurow Committee Room, #205 August 23, 2022
Members Present: Kent, Petty
Absent: Sloan
Others Present: Mayor Nelson, Adm. Bradley, Clerk Zeman, J. Ostrander, L. Laux, T. Pinion

Call to Order –Ald. Petty called the meeting to order at 6:00p.m. noting compliance with the Open Meeting Law.
Moved by Kent, seconded by Petty to approve the minutes of August 9, 2022. Motion carried unanimously. Moved
by Kent, seconded by Petty to approve the agenda. Motion carried unanimously.

Action Items
a) Accounts Payable – Moved by Kent, seconded by Petty to recommend to Council holding check #194615

in the amount of $1,684.67 for further review and approval of the balance of the accounts payable for
$1,134,561.75. Motion carried unanimously.

Discussion Items:
The Committee continued to review the proposed changes to the Purchasing Policy. This will be brought back to the
next Finance/Personnel Committee meeting to continue the review.

Adjournment – Moved by Kent, seconded by Petty and carried to adjourn at 6:49pm.
.
Brenda Zeman, City Clerk

52 of 85



BARABOO BUSINESS IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT
Parking Lot Meeting Minutes

Date and Time: Wednesday July 13th 2022 8am
Location: The Jewelers Edge

416 Oak Street Baraboo

MINUTES

The meeting was called to order at 8:06am by Fay. Marshall and Fay were in attendance. Kilgoran was
absent
A motion to adopt the agenda as presented was made by Marshall, second by Fay, motion carried
A motion to approve the minutes from the April meeting was made. Fay first, Second by Marshall, motion
carried

Discussion:
The McNabb memorial: Who has responsibility for which lot media at the Coffee Bean lot. Some is the
County? Fay to follow up with Tom Pinion. Landscapers to contact for the project:
Landscape techniques
Red Shed
Amy Schertz
Talk to McNabb family

Cameras in the Civic Center parking lot:
Good idea but who would monitor? Camera footage to the police station?

Weed Removal:
Bid accepted for Williams Lawn Care for fall removal for $750.00

A motion to adjourn was made at 8:35 by Fay second by Marshall. Motion carried

Submitted by Sarah Fay, chair

53 of 85



54 of 85



Baraboo BID Meeting Minutes 8/17/2022

Present:
Members: S. Fay, A Killgallon, T. Sefkar, T. Wickus, M. Miller, D. Marshall, B. Stelling

Absent:
Members: B McDaniel, K. Thurow

Other: George Althoff, Baraboo Area Chamber & Tourism

President Fay called the meeting to order at 6:01p
In Compliance of Open Meeting Laws
Approval of July 2022 minutes: Marshall/Killgallon. Carried
Adoption of Agenda: Wickus/Sefkar, Carried

Officer/Committee Reports

President: Fay  None

Secretary: Killgallon  Due to a change of employment, my
resignation will be forthcoming. Based on
grace periods, I'm willing to stay on as
secretary as long as able to.

Treasurer: Stelling  None

Appearances: Stelling  A meeting with Decor Group happened
this past week to explore new ideas for
decorations for downtown. Both lighting
and decorative options were explored.
Many of these options would be utilized
year round.

Business Development: Marshall  At recent meeting it was discussed to have
a location of resources for anyone
interested in opening shop in Baraboo

Finance: Wickus  2023 Budgets will need to be finalized in
October.

Parking: Fay  Working on the medians in the Coffee
Bean parking area.

Promotions: Wickus  Farmers market is going well
◦ Concern was brought to Todd about the

condition of the road near the farmers
market. Will be followed up to repaired

Old Business: None

55 of 85



New Business:

 Presentation – Baraboo Chamber of Commerce
◦ Request $20,000 to upgrade the existing sign to a digital sign.

 Approval of Financials
◦ Wickus/Marshall, Carried

 Vouchers
◦ $216.87 – Dog Waste Depot
◦ $1,700.28 – City of Baraboo

$1,917.15 Total
◦ Motion to Approve Wickus/Killgallon, Carried

 Next Agenda Items
◦ Vote on Baraboo Chamber signage
◦ Budget approvals
◦ Sept 21st is the next meeting

Motion to Adjourn at 7:07p, Wickus, Stelling, carried.

Respectfully Submitted
Andy Killgallon

56 of 85



57 of 85



S:\Minutes\Public Safety Committee\2022 Minutes\07-25-22 Minues.doc 

Minutes of the Public Safety Committee Meeting – July 25, 2022 
 
Members Present:  Phil Wedekind, Tom Kolb and John Ellington. Others Present:   Interim Police Chief Sinden,  
Tom Pinion, Tony Gilman, Fire Chief Kevin Stieve, and Kris Denzer. 
 
Call to Order  - Committee Tom Kolb called the meeting to order at 1:00 P.M. at Baraboo City Service Center. 
Compliance with the Open Meeting Law was noted. It was moved by Ellington, seconded by Wedekind to approve 
the agenda as posted. Motion carried unanimously. It was moved by Wedekind, seconded by Ellington to approve the 
minutes of the June 27, 2022. Motion carried.  
 
Public Invited To Speak (Any citizen has the right to speak on any item of business that is on the agenda for this 

meeting if recognized by the presiding officer.) – There were no speakers. 
 

Action Items 

 

a. Review and recommend award of contract for 20022 Lead Service Line Replacement Project – In Peterson’s 

absence, Pinion presented background. He said one bid was received from Mid-City Corporation, Butler, WI. 

Pinion reference were checked and company was found to be very reputable. It was moved by Wedekind, 

seconded by Ellington to recommend approving and awarding the contract to replace 16 private lead services to 

Mid-City Corporation in the amount of $116,000. Motion carried unanimously.  

 

b. Review and recommend approval of a State-Municipal Agreement for the 2022 LRIP Project – Pinion presented 

background. He said 7 communities split a grand in the amount of $105,000, giving each community $15,080. It 

was moved by Wedekind, seconded by Ellington to approve the State-Municipal Agreement for the 2022 LRIP 

Project in the amount of $15,080. Motion carried unanimously.  

 

c. Review and approve amending Section 7.06(16)(b) to provide 2 additional reserved parking stalls for EMS in the 

Municipal Parking Lot on the southwest corner of 5th Street and Ash Street – Pinion presented the background, he 

said that the parking stalls are already reserved by ordinance, and is just looking for permission to reserve two 

more stalls as reserved for ambulance. It was moved by Ellington, seconded by Wedekind to approve amending 

Section 7.06(16)(b) for 2 additional parking stalls, and forward to Council with a positive recommendation. 

Motion carried unanimously.  

 

d. Review and approval of monthly Billing Adjustments/Credits for Sewer and Water Customers for June – It was 

moved by Ellington, seconded by Wedekind to approve monthly adjustments as presented. Motion carried 

unanimously. 

 

Information Items – None  

 

Reports 

a. Utility Superintendent’s Report   

i. Staffing Updates – No updates. Pinion said this is the last week the guys will be working their 5 tens.  

ii. Project Updates – Pinion said that the department continues to work on replacing lead services. Sewer main 

television project is 60% complete, contractor is due here this week to continue. He said there was an 

emergency sewer replacement on Barker between 6th & 7th Streets. Pinion said that the next round of 

comments were received for the West Baraboo agreement. West Baraboo has requested more changes. Pinion 

gave an update on the railroad trestle sewer line. Pinion said that Hwy A water tower project is going well, the 

interior painting is complete. Tower is scheduled to back into service on August 19; however, if weather 

cooperates, that date could get moved up.  

 

b. Street Superintendent’s Report 

i. Staffing Updates – Staffing remains the same.  

58 of 85



S:\Minutes\Public Safety Committee\2022 Minutes\07-25-22 Minues.doc 

ii. Activity Report – Gilman said 2/3 Alley – Birch to West and 2/3 alley – Center to Summit have been paved, 

shouldered, and top soiled. He said 5/6 alley have been prepped ready for asphalt. He said that remaining alley 

to be completed will be Vine to Quarry alley, funding permitting, but it looks good. Gilman said traffic paint 

industry is again experience limited supply. He said 30% more was ordered in 2022 than 2021 to “catch up”, 

and he is optimistic that we will be able to get everything completed before supplies fun out. 

iii. Project Updates –Gilman said that the 2022 Leaf Vac arrived two weeks ago. He said that 2022 Bobcat skid 

steers arrived last week. He said that the purchase of a compact loader planned for 2022 has been postponed.  

iv. Informational- Gilman said that he will have options/suggestions completed for August 2022 Public Safety 

Meeting for the brush collection site. Gilman said that Refuse/Recycling RFP is currently being reviewed by 

Casey Bradley and Tom Pinion.  

 

c. Interim Police Chief’s Report 

i. Staffing Updates – No change, still down two officers and will not be hiring those positions. He said the 

department is also down one administrative assistant position. Sinden said that they are in the midst of contract 

negotiations, and he is hoping to retain the officers that the department has now. Sinden then gave update on 

discussions with School District regarding School Resource Officers.  

ii. Case/Response Update – Sinden said that calls levels are 3.9% lower than last year, and up approximately 6% 

from last year in citations, and warnings. Sinden said that the internet crime being investigated keeps getting 

worse. Sinden said that the Sauk County Fair was a very safe and successful event.  

 

d. Fire Chief’s Report  

i. Monthly Incident Report – Chief Stieve said that monthly report is in the Council Packet, the notable thing 

would be the 21.19% increase in total calls.  

ii. Personnel/Staffing – He said the department is at 32 people; however, there is a recruitment fair this evening. 

Stieve said that there will be some fire classes starting in Baraboo the end of August, first part of September.  

iii. Fire/EMS Facility Update – Stieve said they met with their architectural firm and talked about the east side 

location. He said hopefully in the next week or so the schematic design process of the two facilities will begin. 

He said the west said location process is underway.  

iv. Fire/EMS Consolidation – Stieve said that the consolidation is going well. He said the intergovernmental 

agreement is complete and there is a meeting on August 16.  

  

AJOURNMENT – It was moved by Ellington, seconded by Wedekind to adjourn at 1:40 p.m. Motion carried.  
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
Tom Kolb, Chairman 

59 of 85



Minutes of Plan Commission Meeting July 19, 2022 

 

Call to Order – Mayor Nelson called the meeting of the Commission to order at 5:15 PM. 

 

Roll Call – Present were Mayor Nelson, Phil Wedekind, Roy Franzen, Tom Kolb, Barry Hartup, and Matthew 

Boegner. Jim O’Neill was absent. 

 

Also in attendance were Tom Pinion, Stan Slaney, Max Dvorak, Eric Korthals, Ruth Browning, Dirk Carlson, 

Kevin Spurgeon, Jennifer Sagissor, Neil Pfaff, Jan Bance, and Seth Miese,    

 

Call to Order 

a. Note compliance with the Open Meeting Law. Mayor Nelson noted compliance with the Open Meeting Law. 

b. Agenda Approval: It was moved by Hartup, seconded by Kolb to approve the agenda as posted. Motion carried 

unanimously.   

c. Minutes Approval: It was moved by Kolb, seconded by Wedekind to approve the minutes of the June 21, 2022 

with the correction of the final roll being added to item e. Motion carried unanimously. 

 

Public Invited to Speak (Any citizen has the right to speak on any item of business that is on the agenda for 

Commission action if recognized by the presiding officer.) – There were no speakers.   

 

New Business 

a. Request by Wal-Mart for an amendment to their Conditional Use Permit, which was approved on August 17, 

1999 and subsequently amended on June 17, 2008 and again on March 15, 2016, to revise the exterior color 

scheme of the building and modify the signage, located at 920 USH 136 – Kevin Spurgeon was in attendance 

representing Wal-Mart. Engineer Pinion presented the background for the request. He stated that the grocery 

pickup area will be moving to the north end of the building, between the building and detention basin. 

Spurgeon then presented the current request to the Commission. It was stated that the overall area of the 

signage will be reduced. Kolb requested that the driveway next to KFC be fixed, it is full of potholes. Kolb 

moved to approve the Conditional Use Amendment for Wal-Mart as presented. Wedekind seconded the motion. 

On roll call vote for the motion, Ayes – Wedekind, Franzen, Kolb, Hartup, Boegner, and Nelson. Nay – 0, 

motion carried 6-0.  

 

b. Review a Conceptual Development Plan in accordance with Step 2 of the Planned Development rezoning 

process for four-duplex buildings as an 8-unit development project on a 1.1-acre site at 1035 Walnut Street by 

S & T Sunset Properties, LLC – Pinion said that this is a conceptual review plan, staff has reviewed it and it is 

basically a concept looking at a 1.1 acre lot that formerly had a single-family home on that was razed and the 

buyer wish to redevelop the lot with a series of four buildings, each being a duplex.  Stormwater design was 

then discussed. It was stated it is the intent to sell each unit individually as part of a condominium association. 

It was the consensus of the Commission to move forward with the project. 

 

c. Review a Conceptual Development Plan in accordance with Step 2 of the Planned Development rezoning 

process for a 33-building, 84-unit development project on a 19.06-acre site on the east side of Waldo Street 

between Parkside Avenue and Hager Street by KMD Development LLC – Max Dvorak presented the 

background to the Commission. Pinion said that the developer heard the concerns of the neighbors and 

attempted to address it. Pinion said that a traffic study was suggested to the developer’s engineer. Consensus of 

the Commission was favorable.  

 

d. Review and approve a 2-Lot Certified Survey Map for the Baraboo Surgery Center LLC located in a B-3 

Highway Oriented Business zoning district at 1203 8th Street, being part of the SE1/4 of the NE1/4 of Section 36, 

T12N, R6E in the City of Baraboo,  Sauk County, Wisconsin – Jennifer Sagissor introduced herself to the 

Commission. Pinion presented the background for the CSM.  Wedekind moved, Kolb seconded to approve the 

CSM as presented. On roll call vote for the motion, Ayes – Franzen, Kolb, Hartup, Boegner, Nelson, and 

Wedekind. Nay – 0, motion carried 6-0. 

 

Adjournment - It was moved by Hartup, seconded by Kolb to adjourn at 5:41 p.m. Motion carried unanimously. 

 

Rob Nelson 

Mayor    

60 of 85



Minutes of Plan Commission Meeting August 16, 2022

Call to Order – Mayor Nelson called the meeting of the Commission to order at 5:15 PM.

Roll Call – Present were Mayor Nelson, Phil Wedekind, Roy Franzen, Jim O’Neill, Tom Kolb, Barry Hartup, and
Matthew Boegner.

Also in attendance were Tom Pinion, Tural Hasanli, Cody Pelton, Interim Police Chief Rob Sinden, John Statz,
Kathy Klein, and Scott Turner.

Call to Order
a. Note compliance with the Open Meeting Law. Mayor Nelson noted compliance with the Open Meeting Law.
b. Agenda Approval: It was moved by Kolb, seconded by Wedekind to approve the agenda as posted. Motion

carried unanimously.
c. Minutes Approval: It was moved by Wedekind, seconded by O’Neill to approve the minutes of the July 19,

2022. Motion carried unanimously.

Public Invited to Speak (Any citizen has the right to speak on any item of business that is on the agenda for
Commission action if recognized by the presiding officer.) – There were no speakers.

Public Hearings
a. The request of Adolfo Morales and Ana Torres (Owners) and Tural Hasanli (Applicant) to grant an amendment

to the original Conditional Use Permit to allow a second used automobile dealership that will mostly export
cars to Europe to operate at 1341 Carpenter Street, Suite B, City of Baraboo, Sauk County, Wisconsin – Scott
Turner address the Commission saying his property adjoins this property to the west. He does not feel that their
lot is big enough and he will not allow them to gain access across his property. Although the owners stated that
they would install fence across the opening on the southwest corner of the property, they have not. If they
don’t do it soon, he will being placing rocks across the opening to prevent them from crossing his property to
gain access. He said that it has taking them a long time to clean up that property. He said that there are still cars
on the east side of the building and he feels that is where the roadway should be to access the back of their
property.

Tural Hasanli then addressed the Commission. He said that he owns a trucking company and has hauled a lot of
junk vehicles off the property to help Adolfo. He said that he would build a fence and have a concrete surface
for the vehicle storage area. He went on to say that he will mostly export the vehicles overseas. He said he will
operate a clean, quiet, and good dealership. He stated that a neighbor complained about tires and other junk on
the property and all of that is now gone.

Mayor Nelson stated for the record that he received a letter from Trina Cromwell which was distributed to the
Commission and Mr. Hasanli.

There being no further speakers, the hearing was declared closed.

b. The request of Greenfield Reserve, LLC for a Conditional Use Permit to convert the existing two-unit
residential dwelling on Lot 8 of Greenfield Reserve Subdivision to two side-by-side single-family attached
residential dwellings at 923/925 Roosevelt Street, City of Baraboo, Sauk County, Wisconsin – There being no
speakers, the hearing was declared closed.

New Business
a. The request of Adolfo Morales and Ana Torres (Owners) and Tural Hasanli (Applicant) to grant an amendment

to the original Conditional Use Permit to allow a second used automobile dealership that will mostly export
cars to Europe to operate at 1341 Carpenter Street, Suite B, City of Baraboo, Sauk County, Wisconsin – Pinion
presented a detailed history of the property and provided a picture from of few years ago showing cars parked
on the green space and in the City right-of-way, and two deep in front of the building. He said that this has
improved in recent years, especially since he sent them an email and met with them on the 26th, they have made
significant improvement of the condition of the site. He said last evening he received photos from a concerned
citizen which still shows a boat, a dump trailer, and a camper still on-site. He said as a licensed dealership you
have to have the ability to perform service on the vehicle that will be sold, or have a contracted service off-site.

61 of 85



He said from inception there was a little repair garage on the side of the existing building that they used, and he
knows that they advertised taking vehicles for repair off the street that were not going to be sold, which was
never part of the approval. He said that the Commission chooses to amend the conditional use he provided them
with suggested conditions. He said that Adolfo has assured him that the septic system would be abandoned and
the property connected to the City sanitary sewer. He said that if this is going to be amended a complete
inspection of by the building inspector and fire inspector should be included. Pinion said in terms of what
actions the Commission can do, the Plan Commission is required to hold a public hearing for conditional use
permits, historically the Commission has been able to take care of things and decide to approve or not on the
same night as the public hearing; however, City ordinance and Statues Statutes give the Commission up to 60
days to render a decision. Kolb asked officers that were present if they are in compliance. Kathy Klein stated
that they have made a lot of progress. She said that she has spoken with both Tural and Adolfo and explained
the requirements of the conditional use permit and pointed the things out that were not in compliance, and they
were given a written explanation of what they needed to do. She said that they have made progress, but still
have many cars on the green space and she is huge into conservations and many of the vehicles are broken
down and could be leaking many types of liquids. She then said that the space in front of the dealership was to
be for customer parking only, and again is full of car that are for sale, so they try but then seem to take a step
back. Wedekind feels that they have a long way to go to be in compliance. Kolb feels that have several
warnings, there have been a blatant disregard for the conditions of the original CUP. O’Neill is inclined to say
until they are in complete compliance with the original CUP he would not be in favor of any increased activity
there. O’Neill moved to deny the request. Wedekind seconded the motion. Mayor Nelson asked if the
Commission denied the request if there was a time limit before requesting another conditional use permit.
Permit said that he would have to double check, but they would have to start from scratch with a new
application and public hearing. The Commission discussed possible options to allow applicants to come into
compliance in a period of time and coming back to the Commission. It was stated that the Commission has 60
days to render a decision. O’Neill and Wedekind withdrew their motions. Pinion said the way the Tuesdays fall
on the calendar, two months would be October 18, which would be more than 60 days. He said that if the
Commission waited two meetings, a decision would have to be rendered, and he believes that if no decision is
rendered in 60 days, it is an automatic approval. Kolb feels that they have already had 60 days and officers said
they have made some progress; however, when the Commission issues a conditional use permit, the applicant is
expected to comply with the conditions of that permit, and it is obvious that it have not been. He said at best he
would be willing to postpone it for 30 days and if they are not in compliance, deny it. Franzen agreed. Kolb
moved to postpone until the September 20th Commission meeting to allow the owners to come into compliance
with the original conditional use permit. Franzen seconded the motion. Interim Police Chief Sinden said that the
problem has expanded into the property at 304 Lisa Court, so part of the problem now is having the owner at
304 Lisa Court in conjunction the owner of 1341 Carpenter, because the department has had a complaint for
304 Lisa Court. He said that over the past 3 years there have been 15 complaints and those two properties, five
of which have direct relation to nuisance abatements. On roll call vote for the motion, Ayes - Wedekind,
Franzen, O’Neill, Kolb, Hartup, Boegner, and Nelson. Nay – 0, motion carried 7-0.

b. The request of Greenfield Reserve, LLC for a Conditional Use Permit to convert the existing two-unit
residential dwelling on Lot 8 of Greenfield Reserve Subdivision to two side-by-side single-family attached
residential dwellings at 923/925 Roosevelt Street, City of Baraboo, Sauk County, Wisconsin – Pinion presented
the background to the Commission. It was moved by Kolb, seconded by Wedekind to approve the request as
presented. It was stated that one half will be used as an office for the developer for the duration of the
subdivision and then sold as a dwelling unit. On roll call vote for the motion, Ayes – Franzen, O’Neill, Kolb,
Hartup, Boegner, Nelson, and Wedekind. Nay – 0, motion carried 7-0.

c. Review and approve a two-lot Certified Survey Map Review for Greenfield Reserve LLC to create two Side-
By-Side Single-Family Attached Dwellings in an R-3 and Four-Family Residential zoning district at 923/925
Roosevelt Street, being Lot 8 of Greenfield Reserve View subdivision and located in the NE1/4 of the SW ¼ of
Section 31, T12N, R7E in the City of Baraboo, Sauk County, Wisconsin – Kolb moved, O’Neill seconded to
approve the CSM as presented. On roll call vote for the motion, Ayes – O’Neill, Kolb, Hartup, Boegner,
Nelson, Wedekind, and Franzen. Nay – 0, motion carried 7-0.

Adjournment - It was moved by Kolb, seconded by Wedekind to adjourn at 5:52 p.m. Motion carried
unanimously.

Rob Nelson, Mayor

62 of 85



TID Joint Review Board June 21, 2022
Present: City of Baraboo Alder and JRB Chairperson - Phil Wedekind; Regional Director – North Region

Shawna Marquardt; Board of Education President- Kevin Vodak; Sauk County Treasurer –
Elizabeth Geoghengan; Public Member - Stewart Koehler

Absent:
Also Present: City Administrator - Casey Bradley; City Finance Director - Julie Ostrander; City Clerk - Brenda

Zeman; City Engineer - Tom Pinion; City Treasurer - Lori Laux: Ehlers Financial Advisor - Harry
Allen

Citizens: None
The meeting was called to order by JRB Chairperson Phil Wedekind at 4:00PM, CST with roll call and noting
compliance with the Open Meetings Law.

Motion by Marquardt, seconded by Vodak to approve the December 8, 2021 minutes. Motion carried
unanimously.

Motion by Koehler, seconded by Vodak to approve the agenda. Motion carried unanimously.

Action Items:

a) Reaffirmation of the Joint Review Board’s public member Steward Koehler.

The 2021 public member Steward Koehler agreed to the reaffirmation noted by Chairperson Phil
Wedekind.

Motion by Vodak, seconded by Marquardt to approve the reaffirmation of Steward Koehler as Public
Member. Motion carried unanimously.

b) Election and/or reaffirmation of Chairperson.

The 2021 chairperson Phil Wedekind agreed to the reaffirmation to continue as Chairperson.

Motion by Vodak, seconded by Marquardt to approve the reaffirmation of Phil Wedekind as Chairnan.
Motion carried unanimously.

Discussion Items:

a) Discuss responsibilities of the Joint Review Board.

Ehlers Financial Advisor - Harry Allen offered to review the responsibilities of the board but since there
were no new members, all agreed they understood their responsibilities.

b) Review & discuss project plan for TID #8.

Ehlers Financial Advisor – Harry Allen presented the outline of the TID #8 and expansion including:

 Purpose to add 193.85 acres of territory and add $2.25 million of additional project costs to
support ½ mile projects for residential and commercial development.

 Maximum Life of 27 years (final year of increment in 2040, accounts for 3-year standard and
3-year technical college extensions).

 Required finding not less than 50% by area and needs rehabilitation or conservation work.

63 of 85



City Administrator Casey Bradley presented an overview of the proposed TID #8 expansion project. He
talked in more detail about the proposed project expenditures and answered the JRB questions.

c) Review & discuss project plan for TID#11.

Ehlers Financial Advisor – Harry Allen presented the outline of the TID #11 and expansion including:

 Purpose to add 150.99 acres of territory and add $27.05 million of additional project costs
including potential developer incentives, public infrastructure costs, and donations to TID #8 and
TID #10.

 Maximum Life of 20 years (final year of increment in 2041)

 Required finding not less than 50% by area of the real property within the district is suitable for
mixed use development (77.5% suitable). Lands proposed for newly platted residential
development comprise no more than 35% of the real property area in the district (8.1%
residential).

City Administrator Casey Bradley presented an overview of the proposed TID #11 expansion project. He
talked in more detail about the proposed project expenditures and answered the JRB questions.

d) Discuss next meeting date and time.

Next meeting date and time is Wednesday August 9th, 2022, at 4:00PM, CST.

Adjournment
Motion by Marquardt, seconded by Vodak to adjourn the meeting at 4:36 PM, CST and unanimously carried.

Respectfully submitted,
Julie Ostrander, Finance Director

64 of 85



TID Joint Review Board August 9,2022
Present: City of Baraboo Alder and JRB Chairperson - Phil Wedekind; Regional Director – North Region

Shawna Marquardt; Board of Education President- Kevin Vodak; Sauk County Treasurer –
Elizabeth Geoghengan; Public Member - Stewart Koehler

Absent:
Also Present: City Administrator - Casey Bradley; City Finance Director - Julie Ostrander; City Clerk - Brenda

Zeman; City Engineer - Tom Pinion; Ehlers Financial Advisor - Harry Allen; Ehlers Financial Advisor
– Greg Johnson, Mayor – Rob Nelson

Citizens: None
The meeting was called to order by JRB Chairperson Phil Wedekind at 4:00PM, CST with roll call and noting
compliance with the Open Meetings Law.

Motion by Vodak, seconded by Geoghegan to approve the June 21, 2022, minutes. Motion carried unanimously.

Motion by Koehler, seconded by Vodak to approve the agenda. Motion carried unanimously.

Review Items:

a) Review the public record, planning documents and the resolutions passed by the Plan Commission and
Common Council.

Ehlers Financial Advisor - Harry Allen, presented the plans for expansion for TID#8 and TID#11 that were
originally discussed at JRB, approved by Baraboo City Council, and returned to this meeting for final
approval. The PE-300 annual reports, project costs, cashflows and assumptions were also discussed.
Action was taken later in the meeting.

b) Review Annual PE-300 Reports, and the performance status of the City’s active Tax Incremental Districts
as required by Wis. Stat. § 66.1105(4m)(f).

Ehlers Financial Advisor – Greg Johnson, presented TID#6, TID#7, TID#9 and TID#10 annual reports. The
PE-300 annual reports, project costs, cashflows and assumptions were discussed. Action was taken later
in the meeting.

Action Items:
a) Consideration of “Resolution Approving an Amended Project Plan and Boundaries for Tax Incremental

District No.8.”

No discussion was needed.

Motion by Vodak seconded by Marquardt to approve the “Resolution Approving and Amended Project Plan and
Boundaries of Tax Incremental District No. 8”
Motion carried unanimously.

65 of 85



b) Consideration of “Resolution Approving an Amended Project Plan and Boundaries for Tax Incremental
District No. 11.”

No discussion was needed.

Motion by Koehler, seconded by Geoghegan to approve “Resolution Approving and Amended Project Plan and
Boundaries of Tax Incremental District No. 11”
Motion carried unanimously.

c) Approve “Resolution Acknowledging Filing of Annual Reports and Compliance with Annual Meeting
Requirement.”

No discussion was needed.

Motion by Geoghegan, seconded by Koehler to approve the “Resolution Acknowledging Filing of Annual Reports
and Compliance with Annual Meeting Requirement”
Motion carried unanimously.

Adjournment
Motion by Koehler, seconded by Geoghegan to adjourn the meeting at 4:26 PM, CST and unanimously carried.

Respectfully submitted,
Julie Ostrander, Finance Director

66 of 85



 

Page 1 of 19 

 

9.06.22 Revisions 

BARABOO AREA JOINT FIRE AND EMERGENCY MEDICAL 

SERVICES DISTRICT 

INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT  

AND 

BYLAWS 

I. CREATION 

1. CREATION. This is an Intergovernmental Agreement (“Agreement”) pursuant to Wis. Stat. 

§66.0301 amending the by-laws creating and governing the Baraboo Area Joint Fire and Emergency 

Medical Services District (“Joint District”) created and effective, [insert date].  This Agreement 

supersedes any prior agreement with respect to the operation of the Baraboo District Ambulance 

Service. The purpose of this Agreement is to create a joint district for the Member towns, village, 

and city for fire suppression and related activities pursuant to Wis. Stat § §60.55(1), 61.65(2)(a), and 

62.13(8) and for emergency medical services pursuant to Wis. Stat. 256.12(2)(a). 

2. MEMBERS. The Members of the Joint District (the “Members”) include the following 

cities, villages, and townships: 

A. The City of Baraboo; 

B. The Village of West Baraboo; 

C. The Township of Baraboo; 

D. The Township of Excelsior (portion thereof); 

E. The Township of Fairfield; and 

67 of 85



 

Page 2 of 19 

F. The Township of Greenfield; and 

G. The Township of Sumpter (portion thereof). 

The portions of the Townships of Excelsior and Sumpter covered by this Agreement are 

shown on Appendix A. This Agreement shall remain in full force and effect until it is terminated 

pursuant to the provisions set forth in Article IX or amended pursuant to Article XI. The Members 

agree to adopt such ordinances or resolutions necessary for the creation, management and operation 

of the Joint District. 

II. JOINT DISTRICT COMMISSION 

1. COMPOSITION. The Joint District will be governed by a Commission (the “Commission”) 

consisting of eight (8) ten (10) voting Commissioners and one (1) non-voting Commissioner. Four 

Commissioners shall be appointed by the City of Baraboo. One Commissioner shall be appointed 

by each of the other Members. The non-voting Commissioner shall be appointed by St. Clare 

Hospital, or its designee 

2. APPOINTMENT. The Commissioners shall be appointed as determined by the respective 

Member. Each Commissioner shall serve at the pleasure of the Member that appointed the 

Commissioner. Members shall notify the Commission in writing on or before June 1 of the year in 

which the Commissioners begin  their appointments to the Commission. Commissioners shall make 

a good faith effort to attend every Commission meeting. If a Commissioner is absent from three 

consecutive meetings, the Commission shall notify the Member's appointing municipality to take 

such action as deemed appropriate by the Member. 

3. TERM. The term for each appointed Commissioner shall be determined by the appointing 

municipality. The term of office shall begin as of the Commission’s annual meeting. 

68 of 85



 

Page 3 of 19 

4. VACANCIES. A municipality shall fill any vacancy in its representation on the Commission 

within sixty (60) days of the creation of the vacancy. Vacancies may be created by the death, 

resignation, or removal of the appointee by the respective Member.  

5. COMPENSATION. Commissioners shall be compensated as determined by the 

Commission. All payments of compensation to Commissioners shall be charged against the 

Commission’s budget. 

6. INDEMNIFICATION. The respective Member shall indemnify and hold Commissioners 

harmless with respect to any actions taken within the scope of their service as Commissioners 

pursuant to state law. 

III. OFFICERS 

1. ELECTIONS. The Commission shall elect from the appointed Commissioners a President, 

a Vice President, a Secretary, and a Treasurer. The Commission may combine the offices of 

Secretary and Treasurer.  Officers shall hold office for a one-year term. Officers shall be elected at 

the annual meeting. Each officer shall be elected by a majority of all Commissioners present at the 

annual meeting.  

2. RESIGNATION AND REMOVAL.  Officers serve at the Commission’s pleasure and any 

officer may be removed from office by majority vote of all Commissioners. Any officer may resign 

at any time by giving written notice to the Commission. Such resignation shall take effect on the 

first Commission meeting following receipt of such notice. Any officer vacancy shall be filled by 

Commission election. The elected officer shall serve for the remainder of the term of the replaced 

officer. 

3. DUTIES. The duties of the officers are as follows: 

(a) President. The President shall preside at all meetings of the Commission; 

shall see that the orders and resolutions of the Commission are carried out; shall sign all 

contracts, agreements, leases, mortgages, deeds, promissory notes and other written 

69 of 85



 

Page 4 of 19 

instruments; participate in the annual audit; and discharge such other duties as may be 

required by the Commission. 

(b) Vice President. The Vice President shall act in the place and stead of the 

President in the event of his or her absence, inability or refusal to act; and shall exercise and 

discharge such other duties as may be required by the Commission  

(c) Secretary. The Secretary shall oversee the recording of Commission votes 

and the keeping of minutes for all Commission meetings and proceedings; shall oversee 

Commission compliance with the Wisconsin Open Records and Meetings Laws; shall verify 

that Commission meeting notices are served on all Commissioners and Members; shall 

ensure that records of the Joint District Members and current addresses are maintained; shall 

countersign all documents; and shall perform such other duties as may be required by the 

Commission. The Secretary shall serve as Treasurer in the Treasurer’s absence. 

(d) Treasurer. The  Treasurer  shall at each meeting provide a report to the 

Commission on  the collection and investment of Joint District funds and an  accounting of 

all Joint District transactions, including monies received and dispersed by  the Joint District; 

sign, endorse in the name of the Commission all notes, drafts and other orders for payment 

of money as permitted; report on the Joint District's finances at each regular Commission 

meeting and at such other times as required by the Commission; direct preparation of reports 

and accountings by  Joint District management; participate and report on  the annual audit 

and on the  year-to-date budget requirements; and provide such other reports and perform 

such other duties as may be required by the Commission. 

The City Administrator or designee shall assist the Treasurer in his/her reporting 

obligations to the Commission and shall perform all accounting and financial services for 

the Commission consistent with the Commission budgets, produce necessary reports for 

70 of 85



 

Page 5 of 19 

Commission review, and arrange for and oversee an annual audit of Commission finances 

and accounting records. The City’s accounting services will be expensed through the 

Commission’s annual operating budget. 

IV. POWERS AND DUTIES OF COMMISSION 

1. LIMITATION. The powers of the Commission are limited to those powers expressly 

granted by this Agreement. 

2. MANAGEMENT OF SERVICE. The Commission shall govern, manage, direct and 

supervise Joint District’s operations and carry out the provisions of this Agreement, except as 

delegated to the Personnel Committee below. Consistent with the provisions of this Agreement, the 

Commission shall adopt such rules, policies and regulations as are necessary to carry out its 

responsibilities. In implementing and enforcing its responsibilities under this Agreement, the 

Commission shall receive the Chief’s advice in all matters germane to the Joint District's technical 

operations and rely upon the Chief’s expertise as appropriate under the circumstances. The 

Commission shall develop and annually update the Joint District long-range plan. 

3. EQUIPMENT. The Commission shall oversee the acquisition, maintenance, replacement 

and upgrading of all fire and ambulance equipment. The Chief may purchase, lease or otherwise 

acquire equipment he/she deems necessary or expedient for the operations of the Joint District, 

provided sufficient funds have been budgeted. Equipment costing in excess of $10,000 shall require 

prior authorization of the Commission. 

4. RECORDS. The Commission shall see to it that complete and accurate records are kept and 

maintained of all income and expenditures arising from the operation of the Joint District, to see to 

an annual audit of the service accounts by hiring a reputable certified public accounting firm 

experienced in conducting municipal audits, and to prepare an annual report of ambulance 

operations. 

71 of 85



 

Page 6 of 19 

5. FEES. The Commission shall set fees for the Joint District. Fees shall be reviewed at least 

annually.  Each Member entitled to 2% fire protections fees pursuant to Wis. Stat. §101.575 shall 

assign those fees to the Commission. 

6. BUDGET. The Commission shall adopt a budget pursuant to Article VI showing estimated 

income and expenditures of the service and setting proposed assessments. The Commission may 

expend funds or authorize purchases in such amounts as authorized by the budget. All notes, drafts 

and other orders for payment of money shall be signed by the President and Treasurer. All purchases 

shall be accomplished in compliance with Wis. Stat. § 19.59. 

7. EMPLOYEES. The Commission shall employ such persons as deemed necessary by the 

Commission and compensate such employees on terms as approved by the Commission within the 

scope of the annual budget and pay any and all employer taxes that may arise out of their 

employment. 

The Commission shall hire a Chief who shall report to the Commission. The Chief shall hold 

the position until resignation, death, disability, retirement or removal as permitted by law pursuant 

to Wis. Stat. §62.13(5). The Chief shall be responsible for all job duties set forth in the Commission-

approved job description, including hiring, discipline and termination. A vacated position authorized 

by the annual operating budget may be filled by the Chief, unless the Commission directs otherwise.  

Any employees hired by the Chief shall be Commission employees and not Member employees. The 

hiring of firefighters and EMTs/paramedics shall be governed by Wis. Stat. §62.13(4).  The 

suspension, demotion or termination of firefighters and EMTs/paramedics shall be governed by Wis. 

Stat. §62.13(5).  The Personnel Board (see Article IX) shall be in charge of hiring and discipline 

governed by Wis. Stat. §62.13(4) and (5). 

8. SALARIES. The Chief shall establish salaries, personnel rates, or any other employee 

benefits as approved by the Commission. 

72 of 85



 

Page 7 of 19 

9. SUPERVISION. The Commission shall review the Chief’s performance at least on annual 

basis, shall oversee the Chief’s administration of Joint District personnel matters, and shall receive 

at each regular meeting the Chief’s report of District operations. 

10. CONTRACTS. The Commission may enter such contracts as are necessary to carry out 

Commission duties and responsibilities that are within the scope of the annual and capital budgets. 

11. LEGAL COUNSEL. The Commission shall retain legal counsel to advise the Commission 

on matters concerning the Commission and Joint District operations. 

12. INSURANCE. The Commission shall procure and maintain insurance coverage, including 

general liability, vehicle, workers’ compensation, property and casualty, employment liability, and 

Directors' and Officers' coverages, naming the Members as additional insureds. The liability policies 

shall have a minimum coverage of Five Million Dollars ($5,000,000).  The Commission shall 

provide copies of the policies to the Members. 

13. CONTRACTS FOR SERVICE. The Commission in its discretion may approve and enter 

into contracts for service with non-Member municipalities or other non-participating groups. Such 

contracting parties shall be known as Subscribers. Through such contracts Joint District may provide 

fire suppression and/or ambulance services to a Subscriber for a set annual fee or any other basis 

deemed appropriate by the Commission. A Subscriber for service would hold no ownership interest 

in any assets on the Joint District, would have no voting rights as a Member, and would not be 

entitled to representation of the Commission. No contract for service may be entered if it would 

impair the ability of the Joint District to provide fire suppression and/or ambulance service to Joint 

District Members. The Commission may enter into reciprocal agreements with other governmental 

units and municipalities for the purpose of assisting in larger incidents or situations (e.g., Mutual 

Aid, Automatic Mutual Aid and MABAS). 

14. DEPOSITORIES. The Commission shall designate one or more public depositories for 

depositing Commission funds and for any other purpose permitted by law, as governed by Chapter 

73 of 85



 

Page 8 of 19 

34, Wis. Stats.  The Joint District shall utilize direct deposit accounts for payroll purposes and may 

use electronic payment for other expenditures as approved by the Commission. 

15. ACCOUNTING. The Commission shall maintain a system of accounting in conformity with 

Generally Accepted Municipal Accounting Principles, the Government Accounting Standards 

Board, and state law as appropriate for its operations.  

V. COMMISSION MEETINGS 

1. REGULAR MEETINGS. The Commission shall hold an annual meeting in June at which 

it seats new Commissioners and elect its officers. Thereafter, the Commission shall meet as often as 

necessary for the transaction of its normal business, but not less than quarterly  

The Commission President shall prepare the agenda for each meeting in consultation with 

the Chief. Any two Commissioners may request an item to be placed on the agenda provided such 

request is made at least forty-eight (48) hours prior to the meeting. 

2. SPECIAL MEETINGS. Special meetings of the Commission may be called at any time by 

the President or by written request to the President by at least four (4)three (3) Commissioners or by 

a majority vote of the Commission at a Commission meeting. 

3.  MEETING REQUIREMENTS AND QUORUM. The Commission shall only act at 

meetings convened within the requirements of the Wisconsin Open Meetings Law.  Meetings shall 

take place at a location within the District. A majority of the voting Commissioners then serving 

shall constitute a quorum regardless of the number of votes possessed (i.e. five six Commissioners 

based on the current membership of eight 10 Commissioners with no vacancies) The Commission 

may adopt a policy permitting the attendance by some or all of its members remotely. Meetings shall 

be governed by latest edition of Robert Rules of Order. Minutes shall be kept of all actions taken 

and matters discussed at every Commission meeting and shall be approved by the Commission at its 

next meeting.  Approved Commission minutes shall be provided to the Members within ten (10) 

days of approval. 

74 of 85



 

Page 9 of 19 

4. VOTES OF THE COMMISSION. If a quorum of Commissioners is present, then a 

majority of the members represented at the meeting (not weighted votes), shall be the act of the 

Commission. 

5. SUPERMAJORITY VOTES REQUIRED. Notwithstanding the provisions of subsection 

4 above, the following actions of the Commission shall require the affirmative vote of at least two-

thirds of the entire Commission (notwithstanding absences or vacancies). Under this section, the 

vote of each City Commissioner shall be counted as two votes, and the vote of each other voting 

Commissioner shall be counted as one vote 

a. Borrow money or otherwise incur indebtedness; 

b. Purchase land; 

c. Purchase buildings; 

d. Construct buildings; 
 
e. Enter any lease or other contract for a term of longer than one (1) year; 

f. Approve and amend the annual budget pursuant to section VI.1. below; 

g. Approve and amend the capital budget pursuant to section VI.4. below; 

h. Approve any expenditure in excess of $10,000; and 

i. Amend this Agreement. 

j. Terminate the Joint District pursuant to section I.X. below. 

 

VI. EXPENDITURES AND BUDGET 

1. PREPARATION. Prior to the first day of September of each year, the Commission shall 

submit to all Members a proposed budget. The proposed budget shall include an estimate of expenses 

for the Joint District operations necessary for the ensuing year, including the lease of a building to 

house Commission operations and insurance costs and expenses associated with the repair, 

75 of 85



 

Page 10 of 19 

maintenance, and replacement for any equipment with a life expectancy of five (5) years or less or 

a replacement cost of fifty thousand dollars ($50,000.00) or less. The proposed budget shall also 

include projected receipts from users of the Joint District and the 2% fees received and assigned by 

the Members. The projected receipts shall be deducted from the total budget amount and upon 

approval of the budget the balance shall be assessed to all Members.  Any input from the Members 

on the budget must be provided in writing to the Commission on or before the fourth Wednesday in 

September October 15. The Commission shall adopt its budget on or before November 1 and submit 

that budget to the Members within three (3) working days of adoption. 

2. ASSESSMENTS. Each Member shall be responsible for a proportionate share of the 

Commission approved budget amount based upon the averaging of the relative percentages of each 

Member’s population, equalized value, and calls for service compared to the total population, 

equalized value, and calls for service of all Members. The population and equalized value shall be 

determined based upon the certified population and equalized value of each Member for the 

preceding year. The calls for service shall be based upon an average over the preceding three years. 

Fire calls shall be measured based upon calls reported in the National Fire Incident Reporting System 

or any successor report. EMS calls for service shall be based upon departmental run sheets, 

excluding inter-facility transfers and blood draws. An example of the proportionate share calculation 

is appended to this Agreement.  

3. Each Member shall pay its proportionate share of the approved budget as follows: one-half 

of the amount due shall be paid by February 15th and the balance shall be paid by August 15th of each 

year. 

4. ADMINISTRATION OF THE ANNUAL BUDGET.  Once approved, the Commission 

shall administer the approved annual operating budget.  Funds designated for expenditure in the 

annual operating budget cannot be used for capital budget items without prior approval of the 

Members. The Commission may make such other amendments to the annual operating budget to the 

76 of 85



 

Page 11 of 19 

extent funds are available from the approved budget. Prior to the adoption of the succeeding year's 

annual operating budget, the Commission shall review the current year's annual operating budget 

and reconcile and approve changes in revenue and expenditures from the approved annual operating 

budget. This amended operating budget shall be forwarded to the Members prior to the adoption of 

the succeeding budget. 

5. CAPITAL BUDGET. Within the same time frame and by the same process as set forth for 

the annual budget, the Commission shall adopt by super majority a capital budget for the succeeding 

five (5) years of expected expenditures for purchases, construction, repair, and renovation of real 

property and/or equipment with a life expectancy of greater than five years or a replacement cost of 

fifty thousand dollars ($50,000.00) or more. The Capital Budget shall be funded in a manner 

determined by supermajority by the Commission at the time of its adoption. Funding for capital 

purchases may be accomplished in the following manner: 

a. By way of an annual assessment in the annual operating budget with funds 

deposited in the Reserve Fund to be used for subsequent purchases; 

b. By fundraising efforts; 

c. By lump sum payment assessed to the Members in addition to the annual 

operating budget;  

d. By borrowing funds and assessing the Members in the annual operating 

budget for the amortized principal and interest payments; or, 

e. The adoption of user or other fees by the Municipalities. 

Different funding options can be used for individual, grouped or all of the contemplated 

expenditures in the Capital Budget. 

 

77 of 85



 

Page 12 of 19 

VII. ASSETS AND LIABILITIES 

1. OWNERSHIP. All equipment, vehicles, and other property held, acquired or purchased by 

the Commission shall be Joint District property. Ownership of all such property shall be titled in the 

Baraboo Area Joint Fire and Emergency Medical Services District. All donations to the Joint District 

must be formally accepted by the Commission.  Once accepted, all donations to the Joint District 

become Joint District assets.  All Joint District assets shall only be used for Joint District purposes 

and not for personal use. The City shall construct and own the buildings which house Joint District 

operations and shall lease those premises to the Commission by written lease, a copy of which is 

found as an addendum to this Agreement. 

2. EQUITABLE INTEREST. Members of the Joint District shall have an equitable lien in the 

net equity value of the Joint District in an amount proportionate to the relative contributions of each. 

At the commencement of this Agreement, the City and Village will transfer all of the vehicles and 

equipment of the City of Baraboo Fire Department to the Baraboo Joint Fire and Emergency Medical 

Services District. The City and Village will establish the fair market value of the transferred assets, 

less outstanding debtdepreciation, to be used in the calculation of its net equity interest, subject to 

challenge by any Member pursuant to the process set forth in Article X, Section 5. The Commission 

shall keep records necessary to determine the proportionate equity interest of each Member and must 

annually calculate the Commission’s net equity based upon fair market value of its assets, less 

depreciation. Property acquired at a purchase price of $10,000 or less shall be treated as an expense 

in the year of purchase with no remaining fair market value. The Commission shall designate upon 

purchase whether an asset is acquired at a purchase price above that amount. 

3. CONTROL OF PROPERTY. The Commission shall have exclusive charge and custody 

of all property and equipment owned or leased by it.  The proceeds of the sale of any Joint District 

asset shall be deposited in the Joint District general account. 

78 of 85



 

Page 13 of 19 

4. ACCOUNTS. All monies of the Commission shall be kept segregated under the supervision 

of the Commission Treasurer appointed under section III.3. (d). 

5. EXPENDITURES. The Commission shall have exclusive oversight of the expenditures of 

Joint District funds. Joint District staff shall list all expenditures with the names of the payees, the 

amount of each expenditure and, where not apparent, the purpose of the expenditure. The 

Commission shall create a Finance Committee which shall review Joint District expenditures prior 

to each meeting to confirm the appropriateness of such expenditures under the approved budgets 

and report on such review to the Commission at the Commission’s next scheduled meeting. 

6. SURPLUS EQUIPMENT. The Commission may designate Joint District property other 

than real estate or buildings, as surplus property if it is no longer necessary for Joint District 

operations, or cannot reliably or economically perform the work required of it. Upon such 

designation, the Commission shall determine the method of disposition of the surplus property. 

Methods of disposition include, but are not limited to; disposal, salvage, donation, negotiated sale, 

sale by sealed bid, public auction, online sale, and online auction site. The Chief shall be responsible 

for disposing of the property in the manner designated by the Commission. The proceeds of the sale 

of any surplus equipment shall be deposited in the Commission’s general account.  

Notwithstanding the above, for any such property with an estimated value of $5,000 or less 

the Chief may designate the property as surplus and the method of disposition.   The Chief shall 

provide a report to the Commission on an annual basis, or more frequently if requested by the 

Commission, identifying all property designated as surplus, the reason for dispositions, method of 

disposition and amount received if any. Commission members, Joint District employees or Member 

officials or employees shall not receive surplus property except if the disposition is through a public 

sale. 

79 of 85



 

Page 14 of 19 

VIII. NEW MEMBERS 

1. ADMISSION. The Commission may, by majority vote, admit new municipalities to the 

Joint District. Such new Members are subject to all Joint District rules, regulations and Bylaws and 

be required to become a signatory to this Agreement. 

2. PURCHASE REQUIREMENTS. Each new Member shall purchase an ownership share 

of  Joint District assets. Assets shall be valued by the Commission at their fair market value, less 

outstanding debtdepreciation, as of the date of new Member entry. The Commission, in its 

discretion, may defer payment of such amounts upon such terms and conditions as may be approved 

by the Commission. In such event, no payment of equity interest as set forth in section X.3. below, 

shall be issued until the capital purchase amount is first deducted. 

IX. PERSONNEL BOARD 
 

1. Duties.   A Personnel Board shall be appointed as set forth below for the purpose of  

exercising the duties of a board of police and fire commissioners under Wis. Stat. §§ 62.13(3), (4), 

and (5) related to the hiring and discipline (demotion, suspension or termination) of the Chief and 

subordinates. 

2. Composition.   The Personnel Board shall be comprised of five (5) voting members all 

having one vote.  Each Board member shall serve a five (5) year term and no Board member may 

be an employee of the fire or EMS department, an elected or appointed official of any of the 

Members or a member of the City of Baraboo Police Commission.  The Personnel Board will be 

comprised of two (2) residents from the City of Baraboo, one (1) resident from the Village of West 

Baraboo, and two (2) members from the Township Members.  The Township members shall rotate 

their Board positions. The initial terms will be filled by the first two Townships is descending 

alphabetical order. After the initial Township term is completed, the third Township in descending 

alphabetical order shall appoint the successor and future appointments shall follow this pattern. 

80 of 85



 

Page 15 of 19 

3. Appointment.   The Personnel Board members shall be appointed by their respective 

municipality. The initial appointments shall be as follows:  City of Baraboo – five (5) year term; 

Township – four (4) year term; City of Baraboo – three (3) year term; Village of West Baraboo – 

two (2) year term; and Township (1) year term. The terms shall run from [date].  Thereafter, the 

Commission shall appoint a replacement from the municipality of the expiring term for a five (5) 

year term. 

4. Compensation.   Personnel Board members shall be compensated as determined by the 

Commission. All payments of compensation to Personnel Board members shall be charged against 

the Commission’s budget. 

5. Officers.  The Personnel Board shall elect from its members a President and a Secretary 

at its first meeting and then at an annual meeting held in June of each year.  The President shall 

coordinate with the Chief to set the agendas, preside at all Personnel Board meetings, and exercise 

all statutory duties of the President. The Secretary shall preside at all meetings in the absence of 

the President, keep the written records of Personnel Board meetings, and exercise all statutory 

duties of the Clerk. 

6. Meetings.     Personnel Board meetings shall be governed by these by-laws with the 

exception of voting and voting rights.   

7. Operating Rules.   The Personnel Board may adopt rules and procedures to govern its 

hiring and disciplinary functions consistent with Wis. Stat. § 62.13((3), (4), and (5) and subject to 

Commission approval. 

8. Budget.  The Personnel Board will provide the Chief with its anticipated budgetary 

needs for the succeeding year prior to August 1 of each year so that the Chief can submit that 

information to the Commission for preparation of the Commission budget under Article VI.  

81 of 85



 

Page 16 of 19 

X. TERMINATION 

1. VOLUNTARY. Any Member may terminate membership in the Joint District by giving 

written notice to the Secretary of the Commission not later than September 30th, with the termination 

being effective at the end of the next succeeding year (e.g. notice is given on September 30, 2020, 

termination would be effective at the end of 2021).  The amendment of service boundaries of any 

Member shall not constitute a withdrawal or otherwise implicate any payment.   A terminating 

Member shall remain liable for its assessed share of operating costs for the remainder of that year 

and the next succeeding year but not thereafter. Such Member shall be liable for any negative net 

equity as set forth below in subsection 3 of this section. 

2. EJECTMENT. Any Member that fails to pay its assessed share of the approved budget on 

or before the due date of any year shall be in default. Upon default, the Commission shall send a 

notice of default to that member and demanding payment within thirty (30) calendar days of the date 

of the letter.  If the defaulting members does not cure the default by that date, the Commission may 

suspend all services to that member and/or terminate that member’s membership in Joint District 

ninety (90) calendar days after the expiration of the cure period. In the event of termination of fire 

suppression and ambulance services, the defaulting Member shall remain liable for its assessed share 

of operating costs for the entire year of termination together with interest at the annual rate of 12% 

until paid, and reasonable attorney fees incurred by the Commission in any legal action to collect 

such amounts owed. Such Member shall also remain liable for liabilities as provided in subsection 

3 below of this Section. 

3. MUTUAL TERMINATION OF JOINT DISTRICT. The Joint District may be terminated 

by the super majority vote of the Members. Upon termination of the Joint District, its assets, 

including those acquired by gift or donation, shall be liquidated and the money remaining after 

82 of 85



 

Page 17 of 19 

payment of all of its obligations shall be distributed to the municipalities which are then Members 

according to the membership share of the assets. 

4. RIGHTS AND OBLIGATIONS ON TERMINATION. Any Member whose membership 

in the Joint District is terminated, shall remain entitled to, or obligated for, its proportionate share of 

net equity. Net equity may be either positive or negative and shall be computed as outlined below in 

subsection 4 of this section. If net equity at the time of termination is above zero, the terminating 

Member shall be entitled to payment as provided below.  Payment shall be made within five years 

of the date of termination.  The withdrawing municipality shall remain liable for its percentage of 

any adverse claim asserted against the Joint District which occurred during the time the withdrawing 

municipality was a Member of the Joint District. 

If net equity is below zero the terminating Member shall be obligated to pay the Joint District 

a portion of the negative net equity as defined below. For purposes of this Section, “proportionate 

share” is the percentage calculated under Article VI, Section 2 of the terminating Member (using a 

formula which includes population, calls for service, and assessed value) multiplied by an assigned 

tax subsidy rate of 20% multiplied by the net equity amount. [By way of example, if at the time of 

termination, the Member’s proportionate share as determined under Article VI, Section 2  is 7% and 

negative net equity is determined to be $1 million dollars the calculation would be: 0.2 x 0.07 x 

1,000,000 = $14,000]. As provided in section VIII.2., any unpaid capital purchase amount shall be 

first deducted before compensation is issued. Amounts due to, or from, a withdrawing Member shall 

be paid within five years from the date of termination. 

5.  NET EQUITY DETERMINATION. ‘‘Net equity’’ shall equal the fair market value, less 

outstanding debt depreciation, of all Joint District property less the total of all unpaid mortgage 

balances, loan balances, lease balances, liens and all other debts and obligations of the Joint District. 

The fair market value of assets and outstanding liability balances shall be determined by the 

Commission based upon the net equity established under Section VII (2), above, updated to the date 

83 of 85



 

Page 18 of 19 

of withdrawal.  The Generally Accepted Accounting Principles in place at the end of the fiscal year 

shall govern all calculations. Assets shall include, but not be limited to, cash, accounts receivable, 

real property, and equipment.  Equipment shall include all tangible property.  

Any Member may request a third-party auditor to review the net equity value established by 

the Commission. If a Member chooses a third-party auditor, that Member shall be responsible for 

the costs. The value of the property and equipment will be valued at the existing value as of the date 

of the withdrawal. Equipment value shall be calculated as the purchase price, less the value of gifts 

or grants applied to the original purchase of the equipment and less depreciation using straight line 

depreciation as determined by the auditors.  The value of real property shall be valued based on its 

fair market value, less outstanding debtdepreciation, as of the date of withdrawal. Any item with an 

anticipated useful life of less than a year will be considered an operating expense. Any disputes 

between the net equity value determined by the Commission and by the third-party auditor shall be 

resolved by arbitration under Section XI, below. 

XI. DISPUTE RESOLUTION 

1. INFORMAL DISPUTE RESOLUTION. If any Member has a dispute concerning any of 

the matters of this Agreement, the Member asserting the dispute shall first seek to have the matter 

resolved informally by providing the other party(ies) with a written notice stating the nature of the 

dispute. If informal resolution is not reached within sixty (60) days from the date of the notice, the 

Municipalities agree to mediate the dispute. 

2. MEDIATION. The parties agree to name a mediator within fourteen (14) days of the 

expiration of the time period to reach informal resolution. If no mediator is agreed upon within said 

fourteen (14) days, each party shall name a third-party and the third-parties so named shall pick a 

mediator within ten (10) days. The parties shall present their dispute to the mediator within sixty 

(60) days of the mediator being named. Nothing in this provision shall preclude any party from filing 

a notice of claim or taking other action required by statute to preserve its rights under applicable 

84 of 85



 

Page 19 of 19 

notice of claim statutes. The mediator shall not have the authority to add, change, alter or modify 

any of the terms or provisions of this Agreement. The expense of the Mediator shall be divided 

equally between the Members. 

3. ARBITRATION. If any matter submitted to mediation cannot be resolved through 

mediation, any party may seek arbitration of the issue. That party shall notify the other parties in 

writing of its intent to seek arbitration concerning the matter within fourteen (14) days of the 

conclusion of mediation. The parties will attempt to reach agreement on an arbitrator to decide the 

dispute. If they are unable to do so within five (5) business days of the notice of intent to arbitrate, 

the party seeking arbitration shall petition the Sauk County Circuit Court for appointment of an 

arbitrator.  All other aspect of the arbitration shall be pursuant to Wis. Stat. Chapter 788, unless 

otherwise agreed to by the parties.  The arbitrator shall not have the authority to add to, change, alter, 

or modify any of the terms or provisions of this Agreement.  The arbitrator’s decision shall be final 

and binding upon the parties. Each Member shall bear equal costs of any arbitration proceeding. The 

expenses of the arbitrator shall be borne by the non-prevailing party or parties on material issues. 

 

XII. MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS 

1. SEVERABILITY. If any section, subsection, sentence, clause or phrase of this Agreement 

is found to be invalid by any court of competent jurisdiction, such decision shall not affect the 

validity of any other section, subsection, sentence, clause or phrase of this Agreement. 

2. AMENDMENTS. Amendment(s) to this Agreement shall require a super majority vote of 

all Commissioners supported by a certified copy of a resolution duly adopted by each municipality. 

 

 

 

 

85 of 85


